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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Sierra Institute for Community and Environment (Sierra Institute), on behalf of the South Lassen Watersheds
Group (SLWG) and the Lake Almanor Watershed Group (LAWG), proposes to advance collaborative sustainable
stewardship of 600,000 acres of the Upper North Fork of the Feather River (NFFR), Upper Mill, and Upper Deer Creek
watersheds. A key dimension of sustainable stewardship involves simultaneously addressing watershed and “fireshed”
issues. At the headwaters of the State Water Project (SWP), draining to Lake Oroville, the SWP's largest reservoir, the
Upper Feather River watershed provides water to over 20 million Californians and 750,000 acres of irrigated farmland.
Water quantity has long been a pressing issue for downstream interests. Over the past 60 years, PG&E hydrologists have
reported an annual decline of 400,000 acre feet measured at Lake Oroville, attributed to climate change and increased
forest density. Mill and Deer Creek are two of only four remaining Sacramento Valley streams supporting spring-run
salmon. Primary human communities within the SLWG/LAWG footprint, namely Chester and Westwood, are considered
“low-income,” according to AB 1550, and have been impacted by high-severity fire (2000, 2012) with far-reaching
economic, health, and ecological effects. With increasingly unreliable water supply and limited first response personnel,
these low-income communities have limited capacity to prepare for and respond to emergency situations.

Within the planning footprint, SLWG and LAWG work to build cooperative partnerships to collectively improve
water quality, water quantity, and forest health, and reduce catastrophic wildfire risk across ownership boundaries. The
Sierra Institute currently facilitates both groups, though a lack of dedicated funds have resulted in fractured coordination
efforts and challenge future landscape work. Given the groups’ nested geography and complementary goals, the Sierra
Institute seeks to fund watershed coordination to advance work and increase connectivity and the collective impact of the
two groups. The mission of the SLWG, as established in the group’s Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and
supported by LAWG, is to: “Identify, advance, support and enable projects on public and private land in the North Fork
Feather River/Upper Deer Creek/Upper Mill Creek watersheds to reduce the risk of catastrophic wildfire, and improve
ecological resilience, watershed condition and function, and local community health and socioeconomic conditions.”

SLWG work will be linked to the adjacent 400,000-acre landscape project to the north, Burney-Hat Creek
Community Forest and Watershed Group encompassing upper Burney and Hat Creeks, and Butte County Resource
Conservation District with focused work on the lower reaches of the Feather River and Mill and Deer Creeks and they flow
into the Sacramento River. The linked landscape and watersheds total over one million acres.

SLWG's mission is well aligned with the vision of the Forest Carbon Plan (FCP), which aims to improve forest
health and resilience and promote forest carbon storage. The MOU explicates management approaches that mirror
priorities established in the FCP, including but not limited to: managing carbon storage and mitigating large-scale emission
events; managing area watersheds to sustain and enhance native species and habitat; utilizing biomass at multiple scales
to benefit communities; and enhancing economies by promoting nature-based sustainable jobs, recreation, and youth
education. Adaptive management and monitoring protocols are being defined through SLWG's ongoing strategic planning
efforts and are recognized as critical components of implementing established priorities through active intervention, as
identified in the FCP.

The power of these groups in promoting the goals of the FCP is the capacity to bring together a diversity of
stakeholders to achieve consensus and advance innovative and truly collaborative solutions to common problems. These
stakeholders include some of the area’s largest landowners (U.S. Forest Service, National Park Service, and private
timberland owners including Collins Pine Company, Sierra Pacific Industries, William Beatty & Associates), Tribal interests
(Mountain Maidu), local government and non-regulatory natural resource management bodies (Plumas County Board of
Supervisors, Feather River Resource Conservation District, Resource Conservation District of Tehama County, Upper
Feather River Integrated Regional Water Management Group), other federal agencies (Natural Resource Conservation
Service), and environmental nonprofit organizations (Point Blue Conservation Science, Trout Unlimited, Mountain
Meadows Conservancy, etc.). This proposal request is matched by over twice the amount requested with considerably
more likely if funded.

The power of the South Lassen Watersheds Group involves the consensus being developed and supported by all
stakeholders, and guided a principle that action on the land needs to take place sooner as opposed to later, and that
through participation multiple and complex goals will be addressed, monitored, adapted as needed, and achieved.
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3. APPLICATION QUESTIONS
Demonstrated need (20 Points)
I. Current Watershed Conditions/Potential Benefit to the Watershed

a. Describe how the watershed encompasses forest lands with characteristics/indicators prioritized by the FCP:
Forests projected to be at risk due to climatically driven stressors: Ongoing and expected manifestations of climate change
in the region include changes in temperature, water availability, and wildfire. These stressors threaten forest health and
resilience and will likely increase tree mortality. Mean temperatures could increase by as much as 9.0 degrees Fahrenheit in
the northern Sierra Nevada by the close of the century. Modeled changes in precipitation are less certain, though annual
maximum precipitation could increase by as much as 20% compared to historical averages, and maximum-annual three-day
precipitation totals delivered in extreme storm events are projected to increase between 5-30%. Over the same period, Sierra
Nevada snowpack is expected to decrease by up to 90%.1 As hydrologic regimes shift to provide more precipitation as rain
Versus snow, ecosystem water availability will decrease, with implications for tree vigor and drought stress.

Research conducted by Region 5 of the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) indicates that high priority treatment areas in the
Lassen National Forest (NF) are at or above 60% of their relative stand density, significantly increasing the risk of density
dependent mortality. Many of these prioritized areas are characterized as a mixed conifer-fir or white fir type, though all were
historically pine dominated. The increase in the preponderance of less drought- and fire-tolerant conifer species capable of
withstanding higher stocking densities portends the potential amplification of the effects of climate change. The SLWG has
secured funding from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (U.S. BOR) to conduct geospatial analysis that will define high priority
areas based on forest health in addition to other resources at risk as a result of climate change.

Forests at greatest risk due to high severity events: Predictions indicate an increase in the frequency and severity of
catastrophic events, including wildfire and insect and disease outbreaks, in part due to the effects of climate change. Cal Fire’s
Fire Resource and Assessment Program (FRAP) maps indicate that the majority of mapped acreage within the planning
footprint has “Extreme” or “High” fire risk, with areas in closest proximity to waterbodies (i.e., Lake Almanor) characterized as
having only “Moderate” risk. However, the communities in these areas are still at risk from wildfire on federal lands. According
to FRAP, potential fire behavior is characterized as “Very High” or “High” within most of the footprint.

National Insect and Disease Risk Maps, produced by USFS, indicate that within the entire planning boundary 25% of
the treed area - defined as the standing live basal area greater than one inch in diameter - is, in the absence of remediation,
expected to die due to insect and disease pressure over a 15-year time frame (2013-2027). The potential impact of such
events is augmented by recent shifts in forest composition, including changes in species and increases in stocking densities.
Stands with existing large trees: USFS maps identify 129,600 high priority treatment acres on the Lassen NF, concentrated in
and around the planning footprint. These priority areas include California Wildlife Habitat Relationship size classes 4-6 and
stands with canopy cover <60%. Not only do these stands represent USFS old growth (greater than or equal to 30", their
structure also provides important habitat to special status species. According to Cal Fire FRAP GIS ownership data, 70% of
the SLWG/LAWG footprint is comprised of USFS and NPS ownership, both of which maintain large trees and late seral
structure by mandate.

Forests at high risk of type conversion: As the likelihood for high severity fire increases, so too does the risk of type
conversion. Statewide trends indicate an increase in fire size, threatening to dramatically increase the distances between
large-scale burn patches and seed sources, thereby reducing the possibility of natural regeneration in post-fire landscapes.
The 65,000-acre Moonlight Fire (2007) is an apt example, located beyond the planning footprint but within an area targeted for
stakeholder analysis. Approximately 57% burned at an uncharacteristically high severity, leading to stand replacement and
large-scale type conversion. Here, as elsewhere (Storrie, Chips Fires), re-burn potential is increased by the preponderance of
montane chaparral species, communities typified by high severity fire regimes.2

Areas with high habitat at risk, such as spotted owl Activity Centers: According to the BIOS online data viewer, the planning
footprint provides habitat for the following special status species: northern goshawk, California spotted, owl, willow flycatcher,
marten, Chinook salmon, Pacific lamprey, and steelhead trout.

Areas that need to be reforested after high mortality events: Between 1999-2012, a number of large fire complexes with high
severity acreage have recently occurred in or adjacent to the planning footprint (Gun II, Storrie, Moonlight, and Chips).
Significant acreage remains at risk of permanent type conversion and projections indicate that the trend of large-scale, high
severity fire is likely to continue, yielding increased mortality.

Forests at risk of conversion to other uses: There is limited risk of significant human development within the fooptrint
according to data from the 2010 USEPA Integrating Climate and Land Use GIS layers. However, there are concentrated areas

1 Dettinger, Michael, Holly Alpert, John Battles, Jonathan Kusel, Hugh Safford, Dorian Fougeres, Clarke Knight, Lauren Miller, Sarah Sawyer. 2018.
Sierra Nevada Summary Report. California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment. Publication number: SUM-CCCA4-2018-004.

2 Mt. Hough Ranger District, Plumas National Forest. n.d. Notice of Proposed Action. Opportunity to Provide Scoping Comments. Moonlight Fire
Area Restoration Project.
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of predicted development in the coming decades, especially on the shore of Lake Almanor and in adjacent forest land, with
potential impacts for water quality and area and downstream users.

Previously treated areas in need of “maintenance”: According to the USFS FACTS database, roughly 60,000 acres within the
footprint have been treated - mostly in the last 50 years - without re-entry.

b. Describe the watershed’s current condition and cite any supporting studies, reports, or research papers.

The NFFR is headwaters of the SWP and a priority watershed for state investment. Along the river's course toward Oroville
are a number of reservoirs owned and operated by the SWP and investor-owned utilities, managed for recreation and
hydropower. A cascade of PG&E facilities commonly referred to as the “stairway of power,” are located along the lower NFFR.
The USFS manages the majority of land within the watershed. Other interests are industrial (hydropower and timber
production), recreational, agricultural, and rural residential. Water quantity is a pressing issue for local and downstream users.3
Water quality issues broadly relate to flooding and erosion, especially in the aftermath of severe wildfires and as the result of
rain-on-snow events, sediment accumulation in reservoirs, declining forest health in the upper watershed, roads, and rural
residential development. Acute, regional issues also exist, such as elevated mercury levels and declines in aquatic habitat
within Lake Almanor. Finally, temperature increases threaten local and regional fish habitat.4

The Deer Creek Watershed originates within the mountains of eastern Tehama County. The SLWG project area
encompasses the upper, undammed reach, critical for anadromous fish populations. Spring- and fall-run Chinook salmon,
steelhead, and Pacific lamprey consistently run up Deer Creek. Rainbow trout are also common in the upper reaches. Spring-
run Chinook populations have been declining since the 1980s, from historical averages near 3,000 individuals to numbers in
the low 100s. Public and private owners both hold significant acreage, with the Upper Deer Creek watershed containing both
the Lassen NF and private timberlands. Water quality concerns relate to high temperatures during low flows. Key issues within
the Upper Deer Creek watershed are fish habitat and forest management.s

The Mill Creek watershed originates as glacial melt on Lassen Peak, part of Lassen Volcanic National Park (LAVO),
draining steep and undeveloped canyons. The SLWG project area encompasses the upper reaches of the Mill Creek
watershed where the highest elevation of spawning spring-run Chinook salmon in the state are found. Fall-run Chinook salmon
and winter-run steelhead trout are also found within the watershed. Within the lower Mill Creek watershed, irrigation diversions
can eliminate stream flow in the dry season. When possible, instream uses for salmon are provided during peak migration and
spawning periods.6

Conversations within the SLWG have resulted in requested inclusions of the entirety of the Lake Almanor Ranger
District boundary and the remainder of Collins Pine Company ownership, both currently adjacent to, but beyond, the planning
boundary. Final inclusion is pending group approval but would result in partial inclusion of Battle Creek and the East Branch
North Fork Feather River watersheds.

c. Describe how the watershed coordinator would benefit the watershed.

A fully funded Watershed Coordinator (WC) will contribute significantly to the development of truly landscape scale
projects that comprehensively address watershed and fireshed issues within the planning footprint and maximize the return on
investment of group resources. The threat of catastrophic wildfire and attendant impacts on forest, watershed, and community
health, is deeply felt and of the utmost concern to stakeholders. Addressing this threat requires strategic, innovative, and truly
cooperative thinking and planning that moves beyond the status quo of implementing small, discrete projects based only on
the status of their environmental analysis or the preference of a single landowner. The most critical step toward achieving this
goal will, first, be finalizing SLWG's strategic planning process and project prioritization framework, which incorporates
LAWG's localized goals, and, second, to produce a multi-jurisdictional program of work (POW) for the landscape. This POW
will preference large-scale projects with multiple benefits and smaller projects that contribute to landscape priorities,
coordinating resources for their implementation. For this work to be accomplished in a truly collaborative and multi-
jurisdictional manner, investments in soft infrastructure through watershed coordination, including clear and consistent
communication, relationship building, conflict resolution, and leveraging resources for increased effectiveness, is absolutely
vital.

The SLWG's ongoing strategic planning process orients the group around the following principles: 1) biodiversity, 2)
carbon sequestration, 3) community well-being, 4) forest health and resilience, 5) proof of concept: increasing pace and scale,
6) protection of life and property, and 7) water yield and quality. From these the SLWG has also enumerated desired and
anticipated outcomes:

% Sacramento River Watershed Program. 2018. Upper Feather River Watershed.

4 Uma Hinman Consulting. 2016. Upper Feather River Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update.
5 Sacramento River Watershed Program. 2018. Deer Creek Watershed.

6 Sacramento River Watershed Program. 2018. Mill Creek Watershed.
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Process Outcomes

Landscape outcomes

Social outcomes

Strategically advance projects on high priority
acres

Increased fuelbreak connectivity and
coverage

Increased workforce capacity in all
aspects of forest restoration

Projects are collaboratively developed and
implemented

Landscape scale forest heterogeneity,
reduced fuels continuity

Increased involvement of, and capacity
within, Tribal groups and organizations

Wildfires of a significant size managed across
jurisdictions

Reforestation of recent burns

No major fires, and associated
community loss, in WUI

Innovation in treatment and restoration
practices

Increases and improvements in
wildlife/fisheries habitat

Taken as a sum, projects have multiple
benefits

Restoration of riparian zones and
meadows

TEK is used as a guiding principle for land
management

The SLWG's goals, approaches, and desired outcomes are well-aligned with those of the FCP, and the willingness
and capacity of the SLWG’s stakeholders presents a valuable opportunity to implement these recommendations in critical
watersheds. The FCP stresses the importance of stand density management, the use of fire as a management tool, and
improvements to watershed health to maintain the forested land base and its function as a net carbon sink. In achieving this
goal, the FCP also underlines the importance of collaborative work occurring at a landscape scale on public and private lands.
This work, according to the FCP, should produce not only ecological but social outcomes, including innovations in wood
utilization and protection of life and property within the WUI. Finally, the FCP highlights the importance of project
implementation and carbon emissions monitoring. The SLWG has received funding to develop a pre- and post-project
monitoring protocol in partnership with the Climate Action Reserve, which will measure impacts to forest health and provide
accurate, ground-truthed inputs for carbon storage modeling. SLWG hopes not only to implement FCP recommendations, but

to actively improve existing knowledge.

A WC is critical to leading and facilitating the collaborative development of priorities and working with partners to move
these priorities to on-the-ground results. The WC will work to ensure key stakeholders are involved and stay involved, with the
appropriate tools and collaborative framework, in order to generate reaching and lasting outcomes. The WC will;

e Facilitate strategic planning, POW development, and project prioritization processes with an emphasis on multiple

landscape benefits and socioeconomic outcomes;

Facilitate regular meetings, including effective negotiation, conflict resolution, efc.;
Conduct stakeholder outreach that brings missing stakeholders to the table;
Connect stakeholders to requisite resources to enable and expedite projects;

Coordinate pre- and post-project monitoring and associated adaptive management work;
Conduct area assessments to integrate communities into collaborative efforts;

Expand regional coordination via regular meetings and information sharing;

e  Stay current with best available forest and watershed health-related science and practice.
The most pressing issue on public land within the planning footprint is administrative and procedural delay in developing
projects, in large part due to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process. The WC will address this issue in a
number of ways, first, by facilitating the group’s strategic planning process in partnership with the USFS, ensuring that the
group’s priority areas are reflected in the agency's POW and allowing for advanced allocation of resources. Second, the WC
will leverage external resources for NEPA production. This approach will address agency delays - in part the result of
decreased staffing - while improving the collaborative nature of project design. To this end, the WC will pursue and advance
the use of collaborative tools and authorities. In 2018, Sl entered into a 10-year Master Stewardship Agreement (MSA) with
the Lassen, Plumas, and Modoc NFs and has begun work under a Supplemental Project Agreement. Among other benefits,
collaborative agreements offer a vehicle through which the agency can allocate funds as they become available. Finally, the
WC will liaise between Sl project management staff and the SLWG group to incorporate best practices and lessons learned
from existing endeavors. Sl is currently subcontracting and hiring specialists to assist the Lassen NF in their first endeavor to

use external partners to produce NEPA.

Federal procedural and administrative delays also impact private lands, insofar as coordinated treatment of adjoining
acreage is impeded. This coordination is critical in achieving landscape-scale objectives and negotiating important differences
in management approaches; the use of fire as a management tool at jurisdictional boundaries, for example, necessitates
sensitive discussions regarding management objectives, best practices, and liability. The WC’s role in addressing this issue
will be to identify and enact ways to expedite projects on federal lands, and to facilitate discussions to improve trust and
identify mutually beneficial models for collaboration. The group’s existing Memorandum of Understanding will provide an
important foundation for these discussions and negotiations.
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The WC'’s work will result in landscape-scale, collaborative efforts yielding multiple benefits. Outcomes should be
evaluated in terms of ecological impacts as well as group process. Means of evaluating benefits will include the following and
will be led by Sl and the collaborative:

e  Forest health indicators provided by pre- and post-project monitoring (funded, Cal Fire);

Socioeconomic indicators provided by assessment monitoring;

High priority acres on which projects are underway or completed via the collaborative;

Number of acres planned and/or treated across jurisdictions;

Number of acres planned and/or treated using collaborative tools and authorities;

Additional funding secured for project planning and implementation;

Number and diversity of stakeholders engaged;

Increased coordination in the form of meetings, mutual projects, etc. with other regional efforts.

The benefits provided by this WC position will be complemented by existing regional efforts. This proposal represents an
attempt to better link SLWG and LAWG. Sl has been engaged with LAWG since 2003, supporting the group’s mission to
provide water quality and socioeconomic benefits in the Lake Almanor Basin. Directly to the north of the SLWG/LAWG
footprint is the 400,000-acre Burney-Hat Creek Community Forest and Watershed Group (BHCCFWG), a Collaborative Forest
Landscape Restoration project also facilitated by Sl. Efforts will be made to increase the coordination of, and cross-pollination
between, these groups. Other existing efforts are based on the Plumas NF (Feather River Stewardship Coalition) and in Butte
County (Butte County Resource Conservation District, BCRCD). Sl plans to meet himonthly with the BCRCD to increase upper
and lower watershed coordination.

Communities within Indian Valley, SI's geographic base and a collection of communities through which a major Feather
River tributary flows, are absent from existing collaboratives. Sl plans to conduct a stakeholder analysis to determine the
priorities of stakeholders, and propose pathways toward integrating the area into existing collaboratives. Collins Pine Company
has requested that lands they manage in this watershed be added to the footprint, resulting in the inclusion of their entire
regional ownership in the SLWG landscape project.

Consistency with the recommendations of the Forest Carbon Plan (25 Points)
II. List the overall goal(s) that the watershed coordinator will focus on during the grant period.
Goal 1: Coordinate regular meetings, communications, and information exchange with collaborative groups.
The FCP encourages collaborative planning and implementation of forest restoration work at the landscape or large watershed
scale, including support to collaborative groups (e.g., trainings and facilitation).
Organize and facilitate bi-monthly meetings and subcommittees, as needed, with SLWG and LAWG.

a. Organize and facilitate at least four to seven SLWG meetings and four to seven LAWG
meetings annually, including the production of agendas, minutes, and associated materials; b. Semi-annual review of group
coordination and identification of ways to improve coordination and facilitation.

Sub-Task 1 (ST1): Work with a group subcommittee to develop an agenda prior to each meeting and include items that
address short- and long-term goals and action steps to advance group goals. Well-planned collaborative agenda development
is vital to group progress and achieving/tracking milestones.

Apply facilitation best practices to facilitate meetings in an impartial manner, including general meeting preparation and
follow up as well as time for travel to and from meetings. Third-party facilitation and clear communication will foster trust,
promote increased participation, and reduce conflict and hinderances.

Develop meeting minutes and post to the Sierra Institute webpage. Tracking decision-making processes and providing
access to group documents increases transparency will promote adaptive management.

Assist SLWG and LAWG with additional services as requested, such as the development and review of proposals
seeking support, the analysis of geospatial data, and the creation of GIS based-maps. Technical assistance will increase the
groups’ ability to plan and implement strategically.

Goal 2: Advance projects addressing ecological and socioeconomic issues at the landscape scale.
The FCP aims to “create capacity for collaborative planning and implementation at the landscape level,” including collaborative
tools and authorities, external resources for agency activities, and efficient environmental analysis. The FCP also prioritizes
enhanced and improved all-lands forest management.

Finalize SLWG strategic planning, priority area identification, a program of work (POW), and leverage opportunities.

a. Priority areas and POW accepted; b. Strategic planning document draft developed, informed by multiple perspectives;
c. updated version of Lake Almanor’'s Watershed Management Plan; d. water quality monitoring expanded into high priority
areas, including Lake Almanor’s tributaries; e. landscape-scale planning that incorporates knowledge learned from water;
quality data and considers the impacts of forest management on regional water quality; f. additional funds and resources
secured for SLWG and LAWG POW.
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ST1: Facilitate strategic planning and geospatial analysis, and produce a final document. A data-based strategic plan provides
a blueprint for rigorous landscape-scale planning done in a truly collaborative manner, focusing efforts in areas with
environmental and social resources at highest risk.
ST2: Update the LAWG's watershed management plan, integrate into the SLWG strategic plan.
Integration will improve connectivity between these integrated efforts. LAWG's focus on regional water quality will inform
priorities, producing projects that address issues with a nexus to water resources.
ST3: Expand existing water quality monitoring within high priority areas. The impacts of forest management on regional water
quality is not well understood. Local data will be utilized to evaluate resources and plan landscape-scale efforts with a basis in
current conditions.
ST4: Seek resources to leverage watershed coordination and advance POW. Leveraged funds will sustain position beyond
grant term.

Develop multijurisdictional, landscape-scale environmental analysis (NEPA) on high priority acres.

a. Number of acres targeted for contiguous planning; number of ownerships therein; b. increased efficacy in NEPA
development; c. resources leveraged.
ST1: Increase local capacity within partner organizations to assist with NEPA and CEQA. Due to fire borrowing and reductions
in non-fire agency personnel, the USFS looks to partners to assist with NEPA. Partner involvement and expertise is essential
to reach pace and scale. Maidu Summit Consortium capacity building through support for Traditional Environmental
Knowledge analysis and integration into projects.
ST2: Collaboratively develop the area of analysis, resource surveys, and proposed action(s). Collaborative project
development ensures that stakeholder interests and priorities are represented and reduces the likelihood of legislative appeal.
Utilizing stakeholder capacity ensures timely planning and implementation.

Facilitate the use of collaborative tools and authorities.

Agreements entered into on behalf of SLWG/LAWG (#); projects associated with agreements ().
ST1: Coordinate efforts to implement activities associated with Memorandum of Understanding, stewardship agreements,
contracts, and advance projects that utilize these tools. SI's MSA and project work will create local jobs and allows the USFS
to fund preventative work. Collaborative tools will facilitate and speed implementation of larger—landscape scale—projects by
increasing capacity and resources.

Goal 3: Increase coordination of regional efforts and identify gaps to generate linked improvement.
This goal also addresses the FCP's priority for landscape level collaborative planning and focuses on the procedural elements
and soft infrastructure needed to tie efforts together and advance joint work.

Coordinate efforts with grantees and other organizations in adjacent watersheds—focus on watersheds to the north of the
SLWG planning footprint and SLWG streams between the SLWG western boundary and the Sacramento River.

a. Integrate collaborative projects/plans (#); annual meetings with regional WCs (#); shared field tours.
ST1: Facilitate regular meetings to improve effectiveness of complementary efforts. Regular involvement with regional
organizations is critical to coordination and achievement of mutually beneficial goals in upper and lower and adjacent
watersheds, intrinsically connected by natural and social resources.
ST2: Cooperate as appropriate on large-scale grants, project planning, and implementation. Partnering efforts will make the
best use of individual organizations’ resources and capacity and help advance landscape outcomes mutually agreeable to all
parties.

Address the lack of collaborative forest and watershed health efforts in the adjacent areas, particularly the Indian Valley
area of the Feather River watershed; conduct stakeholder analysis in sub-watersheds that include Collins Pine land and
assess viability for inclusivity in SLWG project area.

a. Sl report summarizing stakeholder analysis, outcomes, and next steps.
ST1: Identify, via a stakeholder analysis, areas of interest to stakeholders and the community. Collaborative efforts and focus
issues will be defined by stakeholder priorities. Filling coordination gaps ensures widespread active management and benefit
for all from connected, regional action.
ST2: Coordinate with nascent collaborative efforts to share information, resources, and increase capacity. Incipient
collaborative efforts can connect with existing groups without dictating the nature of their involvement. Local investment will be
sustained and expanded, increasing durability and longevity.

Goal 4: Improve and diversify local job opportunities, benefitting socioeconomic wellbeing.
This goal depends on local work, spearheaded by SI, to creatively utilize woody byproducts of restoration efforts. This goal will
also be achieved by increasing forest management pace and scale, as in the FCP. The Maidu Summit Consortium is actively
working to expand employment opportunities for native crews.

Establish a POW that creates jobs from environmental compliance to implementation.
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a. Adoption by the USFS of projects included in the POW; b. number of jobs created.

ST1: Finalize strategic planning efforts as discussed above.
Build regional plant materials infrastructure and capacity.

a. Establishment of a small pilot local nursery for seed storage and plant propagation; supported curation; b. planned
infrastructure for long-term capacity and job creation that support local reforestation/restoration.

ST1: Work with the MSC and Lassen National Park to secure funding supporting “seed to seed” infrastructure and staff. This
partnership ensures a respectful integration of Tribal Ecological Knowledge (TEK) and practices. Staff support is an
investment in long-term capacity and job creation. Grown materials will support local reforestation/restoration and employ
youth and adults.
ST2: Coordinate associated trainings, workshops, and activities for local youth. Local youth will develop valuable workforce
skills outside the realm of timber harvesting - historically a predominant employer - diversifying job opportunities in the “woods
work ecosystem.”

Promote projects that will utilize burgeoning local bioenergy infrastructure with focus on disadvantaged communities.

a. Bone dry tons delivered to local bioenergy facilities from SLWG projects with reduced haul distances; b. develop a
steady supply of materials, ensuring the longevity of local efforts to produce bioenergy and maintain socioeconomic benefits;
c. local jobs produced.

ST1: Create a POW prioritizing forest restoration activities producing small diameter material that can be used to create
diverse forest products and address employment needs. Local infrastructure will reduce haul distances and prohibitive costs
associated with biomass removal, allowing for local economic development.

ST2: Establish a long-term stewardship contract to ensure material from federal lands. A steady supply of material will result,
ensuring the longevity of local efforts to produce bioenergy and maintain socioeconomic benefits. This work is currently
underway and funded by other SI programs.

Goal 5: Enhance natural resource based learning and increase community awareness of collaboratives.
The FCP recognizes the importance of addressing research needs, including the impacts of forest health on carbon storage
and wildfire risk. Data will facilitate adaptive management, an element of the SLWG strategic plan, and improve regional forest
management practices.

Contribute to natural resource education and citizen science programming in local schools.

a. Participation rates; number of projects monitored via citizen science programs; b. publicized monitoring results through
reports and social media.
ST1: Develop citizen science project monitoring protocol. Project monitoring protocol development is funded [Cal Fire] and will
help quantify impacts on forest health and carbon storage. Public understanding and support will be enhanced by citizen
science.
ST2: Engage students in water quality monitoring activities at Lake Almanor and tributaries to major streams. Annual water
quality monitoring in partnership with CSU Chico will increase students’ awareness of water quality issues and careers in
science. Additional opportunities will be identified with schools.

Generate outreach materials for public dissemination.

a. Readership based on circulation in local publications; b. Social media platform established and # of subscribers; c.
Increased SLWG and LAWG membership.
ST1: Develop bimonthly articles for local newspapers on SLWG work, including LAWG water quality updates. Increasing
SLWG and LAWG membership will garner greater community input, bring missing stakeholders into the fold, and ensure that
the group’s goals reflect those of the community.
ST2: Develop social media platform for sharing information (e.g., facebook, blog, etc.) Social media will enable groups to
reach a broader audience.
ST3: Explore development of outreach “kiosk” at local public libraries or centers. Physical outreach materials will foster interest
in collaborative activities.

Goal 6: Promote conservation of, and enhance interpretive opportunities for, historic and cultural landscapes and practices, as
appropriate.
Though not an explicit goal, the FCP does discuss the importance of increasing Tribal capacity to operate as a sovereign
nation and employ traditional practices for forest and watershed management.

Integrate landscape goals of the Mountain Maidu, and other Tribes, into the broader group through project involvement
and monitoring.

a. Projects incorporating Maidu TEK as an element of planning and/or implementation; b. Project development at the
Tasmam Kojom site/SLWG stakeholder involvement; SLWG field tours (#) involving TEK; c. MSC assessment of SLWG
responsiveness to TEK

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
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ST1: Consult with the MSC regarding the use of Maidu TEK in SLWG projects. Some consultation is funded by Cal Fire and
will help identify means of incorporating TEK knowledge and practices in future SLWG projects, including development and
implementation on MSC and other stakeholders’ lands. Additional support will increase Maidu capacity to steward their land in
the project area.

ST2: Directly support the MSC in management of the TAsmam Kojom site for the practice of traditional ecology. Support of the
MSC will ensure that cultural landscapes are conserved and managed according to traditional practices.

ST3: Liaise between SLWG and the MSC to integrate stakeholders and leverage resources as appropriate.

Additional subtasks will be developed in cooperation with the MSC. Coordination between Tribal and group efforts will ensure
that their respective resources and expertise are available to one another to improve outcomes.

Collaboration (25 Points)

1. Describe any existing partnerships that will be leveraged to meet the goals identified above. Describe partners’
contribution to the proposal, including cash or in-kind match, and the history of the partnership.

The following entities dedicate staff time at group and subcommittee meetings, in addition to data and other internal resources
for strategic and project planning. Other stakeholders include, but are not limited to: Plumas NF, Cal Polytechnic State
University, Plumas Corporation, Almanor Recreation and Park District, Feather River Land Trust, Trout Unlimited, Plumas
County Board of Supervisors, Tehama County and Feather River Resource Conservation Districts, Lassen Forest
Preservation Group, and Sierra Nevada Conservancy.

Lassen NF (10 years): Specialist time to develop and implement projects, including significant in-kind donation of specialist
staff time to cooperatively develop NEPA.

Lassen Volcanic National Park (5 years): Specialist time to develop and implement projects, including significant in-kind
donation of specialist staff time for surveying, fuels reduction implementation, etc.

Collins Pine (20 years): Project management and implementation expertise. Via CCI grant funds, they will contribute
$1,064,025 in forest and meadow restoration efforts within the SLWG boundary.

Sierra Pacific Industries (15 years): Staff resources to the realization of group goals via project implementation. Through
CCl, they will contribute $168,250 to fuels reduction efforts.

Point Blue Conservation Science (10 years): Partner on CCI projects; $30,000 in coordination services.

Maidu Summit Consortium (12 years): Contributes $20,000 in consultation time through a CCI grant; $15,000 for TAsmam
Kojém management.

Mountain Meadows Conservancy (18 years): Staff and Board time for SLWG/LAWG meetings.

Upper Feather River Integrated Regional Watershed Management (10 years): Collaboratively develops and implements
regional projects with mutual benefits for the SLWG/LAWG groups.

Pit and Fall River RCD (10 years): Staff time and expertise to plan and implement regional projects

The BCRCD (>1 year): Staff time for bimonthly meetings to coordinate efforts.

Consistency with additional planning efforts (15 Points)

IV. Describe any existing or planned collaborations with other organizations operating in the watershed. What efforts are
currently under way to encourage cooperation between organizations?

Existing Collaborations: Sl has been funded by Cal Fire to conduct consultation with the MSC to better integrate Maidu TEK
into SLWG projects. Additional stakeholder outreach funds are provided by a U.S. BOR grant. The long-term goal of
consultation and outreach efforts is to better represent Tribal interests in SLWG planning and to respectfully utilize traditional
knowledge and practices to improve the effectiveness and responsiveness of forest health treatments. The MSC will also
utilize $15,000 of requested DOC funding to support management of a unique Tribal project along the Upper Feather River
and Upper Yellow Creek watersheds. Tasmam Kojom, or Humbug Valley, will be managed by MSC based upon the Maidu
cultural and philosophical perspectives as expressed through traditional ecology. Tasmam Kojém, comprised of 2,325 acres of
Sierra meadow and part of a critical thirty square mile headwaters feeding the Upper Feather River, is a culturally significant
place to the Mountain Maidu People. For the past twenty years, it has also been an important place for the demonstration of
how Maidu traditional ecology and contemporary ecological science can be woven together for the benefit of the land. This
place is essential to the perpetuation of the unique culture from which the traditional Maidu ecology was derived.

Planned Collaborations: This proposal will increase coordination between the SLWG and LAWG, leveraging their respective
resources to enhance collective impact. Due to funding restrictions, these efforts were previously coordinated by separate Sl
staff. Dedicating one staff member to both groups will improve communication and streamline the process of identifying areas
of common interest. The SLWG will also work to incorporate LAWG's updated watershed management plan into its strategic
plan, ensuring that priorities and projects are reflected in the group’s POW. The nature and extent of additional overlap will be
determined in cooperation with both groups. The WC will also make efforts to integrate IRWM supported projects into future
CCl grant applications to increase coordination of forest and watershed efforts.

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
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As previously described, Sl will also conduct a stakeholder analysis effort within Indian Valley to determine areas and
issues of interest to community members and stakeholders. Sl is based in Indian Valley with strong connections to the local
community, from ranchers to local schools. Collins Pine Company also owns land in this area and requested its inclusion in the
larger SLWG footprint. SI will work to determine the most appropriate means of including Indian Valley in ongoing efforts or
support the development of a geographically focused collaborative group. Sl also plans to partner with staff from the BCRCD,
should both organizations receive funding from the Department of Conservation, to coordinate efforts in the upper and lower
Feather River watershed. This partnership will take the form of quarterly meetings and regular information sharing to improve
collective awareness and collaborate on fundraising, project planning, and implementation. Finally, the BHCCFWG operates
on 400,000 acres directly north of the footprint. SI will increase internal cross-pollination and information sharing between
these projects.

Co-benefits (10 Points)

V. Describe how the proposal will complement other planning efforts in the watershed. How does the proposal support
published watershed goals identified by the State or other entities?

Existing planning efforts not previously described include the Feather River Stewardship Coalition (FRSC), a forest
collaborative operating on the Plumas NF since 2013. Strategic meetings between Sl and the Plumas Corporation (PC),
FRSC's fiscal sponsor, will determine opportunities to leverage resources to achieve mutually beneficial goals. As a grantee of
the Cal Fire California Climate Investments (CCI) grant program, SLWG supports established agency priorities, including
density reduction for forest health and resilience, long-term carbon storage, and fire risk reduction. SLWG projects support
priorities established by the Sierra Meadows Partnership, led locally by Point Blue Conservation Science, which seeks to
restore 30,000 acres of meadows by 2030 for multiple benefits including carbon sequestration. As discussed in the “Goals”
section, the proposal is also well aligned with the FCP. The WC will improve and enhance forest management on all lands,
producing socioeconomic outcomes for local communities, and addressing important research needs.

Long-term success (5 Points)

VI. Provide a qualitative description of the co-benefits anticipated to result from successful completion of the proposed
tasks, as well as any quantitative information to support your claims.

Socioeconomic benefits are an expected outcome of this effort. The project footprint contains multiple low income (AB 1550),
and disadvantaged and severely disadvantaged communities as defined by the Department of Water Resources’ annual
median household incomes. The facilitation of strategic and large-scale forest and watershed restoration will ultimately guard
against threats to human life, health and property by increasing the resilience of forested ecosystems to wildfire, and
contributing to implementation-ready acreage within the SLWG. Woody biomass generated from SLWG projects will be used
to produce electricity at one of a number of local co-generation facilities, creating jobs, reducing open pile burning, improving
air quality, and mitigating greenhouse gas emissions via renewable energy.

The footprint hosts the State and Federally Endangered spring-run Chinook salmon, for whom the most pernicious
threats are low-flow conditions and temperature increases, both likely to be exacerbated by climate change. Upstream
management facilitated by a WC will improve hydrologic functioning and water availability. The type of projects pursued,
including headwaters meadow restoration, will also improve habitat for a number of special status species, including the willow
flycatcher, great gray owl, and Cascades frog.

The expansion of the LAWG's annual water quality monitoring program, in addition to citizen science monitoring, will
help the groups adaptively manage project impacts on water quality. Support to facilitate local plant materials infrastructure will
further engage interested community members and students, while providing regionally appropriate restoration material. As
mentioned, outreach to the MSC will aim to increase their engagement in SLWG efforts and identify opportunities to integrate
TEK into project planning and design.

VII. Describe any methods or plans to sustain the watershed coordinator position and build upon the accomplishments of
the work plan beyond the life of the grant and explain how the organization will maintain funding for the WC position. SI
holds a 10-year MSA, expiring in 2028, with the Lassen, Plumas, and Modoc NFs. Project work has begun under a
Supplemental Project Agreement covering the entirety of the Lassen NF. As appropriate, SI hopes to include SLWG projects
in this MSA, thereby making available retained receipts from merchantable timber for group facilitation. Sl intends to apply for
CClI funds to implement projects on Federal lands currently being planned in cooperation with the USFS. Coordination funds
could be included in this and other grant proposals going forward.

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
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4. WORK PLAN

TASK 1 Organize and facilitate bi-monthly meetings and subcommittees, as needed,
with SLWG and LAWG.

Timeline
[Start and
End Date]

Total
Requested
Grant Funds

Subtask A: Work with a group subcommittee to develop an agenda prior to each
meeting and include items that address short- and long-term goals and action steps
to advance group goals.

Subtask B: Apply facilitation best practices to facilitate meetings in an impartial
manner, including general meeting preparation and follow up as well as time for
travel to and from meetings.

Subtask C: Develop meeting minutes and post to the Sierra Institute webpage.
Subtask D: Assist SLWG and LAWG with additional services as requested, such as
the development and review of proposals seeking support, the analysis of geospatial
data, and the creation of GIS based-maps.

Performance Measures:

a. Organize and facilitate at least four to seven SLWG meetings and four to seven
LAWG meetings annually, including the production of agendas, minutes, and
associated materials.

b. Semi-annual review of group coordination and identification of ways to improve
coordination and facilitation.

Mar 2019 -

Mar 2021

$57,662.04

TASK 2 Finalize SLWG strategic planning, priority area identification, a program of
work (POW), and leverage opportunities.

Subtask A: Facilitate strategic planning and geospatial analysis, and produce a final
document.

Subtask B: Update the LAWG's watershed management plan, integrate into the
SLWG strategic plan.

Subtask C: Expand existing water quality monitoring in high priority areas.

Subtask D: Seek resources to leverage watershed coordination and advance POW.
Performance Measures:

a. Priority areas and POW accepted;

b. Strategic planning document draft developed, informed by multiple perspectives;
c. Updated version of Lake Almanor's Watershed Management Plan;

d. Water quality monitoring expanded into high priority areas, including Lake
Almanor’s tributaries;

e. Landscape-scale planning that incorporates knowledge learned from water; quality
data and considers the impacts of forest management on regional water quality;

f. Additional funds and resources secured for SLWG and LAWG POW

Mar 2019 -

Dec 2019

$17,473.83

TASK 3 Develop multijurisdictional, landscape-scale environmental analysis (NEPA)
on high priority acres.

Subtask A: Increase local capacities within partner organizations to assist with
NEPA and CEQA. (CCI grant used to conduct on-the-ground work.)

Subtask B: Collaboratively develop the area of analysis, resource surveys, and
proposed action(s).

Performance Measures:

a. Number of acres targeted for contiguous planning; number of ownerships therein;
b. Increased efficacy in NEPA development

c. Resources leveraged.

Apr 2019 -

Apr 2020

$2,912.25

TASK 4 Facilitate the use of collaborative tools and authorities.
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Subtask A: Coordinate efforts to implement activities associated with Memorandum
of Understanding, stewardship agreements, contracts, and advance projects that
utilize these tools.

Performance Measures:

a. Agreements entered into on behalf of SLWG/LAWG (#); projects associated with
agreements (#).

Mar 2019 -
Mar 2021

$5,824.50

TASK 5 Coordinate efforts with grantees and other organizations in adjacent
watersheds—uwith focus on watersheds to the north of the SLWG planning footprint
and SLWG streams between the SLWG western boundary and the Sacramento
River.

Subtask A: Facilitate regular meetings to improve effectiveness of complementary
efforts.

Subtask B: Cooperate as appropriate on large-scale grants, project planning, and
implementation.

Performance Measures:

a. Integrate collaborative projects/plans (#); annual meetings with regional WCs (#);
shared field tours.

Mar 2019 -
Mar 2021

$3,494.70

TASK 6 Address the lack of collaborative forest and watershed health efforts in the
adjacent areas, particularly the Indian Valley area of the Feather River watershed;

conduct stakeholder analysis in sub-watersheds that include Collins Pine land and

assess viability for inclusivity in SLWG project area.

Subtask A: Identify, via a stakeholder analysis, areas of interest to stakeholders and
the community.

Subtask B: Coordinate with nascent collaborative efforts to share information,
resources, and increase capacity.

Performance Measures:

a. Sl report summarizing stakeholder analysis, outcomes, and next steps.

June 2019
- Sept 2019

$23,298.00

TASK 7 Establish a POW that creates jobs from environmental compliance to
implementation.

Subtask A: Finalize strategic planning efforts as discussed above.
Performance Measures: Adoption by the USFS of projects included in the POW;
number of jobs created.

Dec 2019 -
Mar 2021

$17,473.50

TASK 8 Build regional plant materials infrastructure and capacity.

Subtask A: Work with the MSC and Lassen Volcanic National Park to secure funding
supporting “seed to seed” infrastructure and staff.

Subtask B: Coordinate associated trainings, workshops, and activities for local
youth.

Performance Measures:

a. Establishment of a small pilot local nursery for seed storage and plant propagation;
supported curation.

b. Planned infrastructure for long-term capacity and job creation that support local
reforestation/restoration.

May 2019
- Mar 2021

$23,298.00

TASK 9 Promote projects that will utilize burgeoning local bioenergy infrastructure
with focus on disadvantaged communities.

Subtask A: Create a POW prioritizing forest restoration activities producing small
diameter material that can be used to create diverse forest products and address
employment needs.

Subtask B: Establish a long-term stewardship contract to ensure material from
federal lands.

Performance Measures:

a. Bone dry tons delivered to local bioenergy facilities from SLWG projects with
reduced haul distances.

Dec 2019 -
Mar 2021

$11,649.00
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b. Develop a steady supply of materials, ensuring the longevity of local efforts to
produce bioenergy and maintain socioeconomic benefits. This work is currently
underway and funded by other SI programs.

c. Local jobs produced.

TASK 10 Contribute to natural resource education and citizen science programming
in local schools.

Subtask A: Develop citizen science project monitoring protocol. Mar 2019 - | $17,473.50

Subtask B: Engage students in water quality monitoring at Lake Almanor and Mar 2021

tributaries to major streams.

Performance Measures:

a. Participation rates; number of projects monitored via citizen science programs.

b. Publicized monitoring results through reports and social media.

TASK 11 Generate outreach materials for public dissemination.

Subtask A: Develop bimonthly articles for local newspapers on SLWG work, Mar 2019 - | $11,649.00

including LAWG water quality updates. Mar 2021

Subtask B: Develop social media platform for sharing information (e.g., facebook,

blog, etc.)

Subtask C: Explore development of outreach “kiosk” at local public libraries or

centers.

Performance Measures:

a. Readership based on circulation in local publications.

b. Social media platform established and # of subscribers.

c. Increased SLWG and LAWG membership.

TASK 12 Integrate landscape goals of the Mountain Maidu, and other Tribes, into

the broader group through project involvement and monitoring.

Subtask A: Consult with the MSC regarding the use of Maidu TEK in SLWG Mar 2019 - | $29,122.27

projects. Mar 2021

Subtask B: Directly support the MSC in management of the Tasmam Kojom site for

the practice of traditional ecology.

Subtask C: Liaise between SLWG and the MSC to integrate stakeholders and

leverage resources as appropriate.

Subtask D: Identify projects in the POW and beyond with the potential to integrate

Tribal practices.

Performance Measures:

a. Projects incorporating Maidu TEK as an element of planning and/or

implementation.

a. Project development at the TAsmam Kojom site/SLWG stakeholder involvement;

SLWG field tours (#) involving TEK

c. MSC assessment of SLWG responsiveness to TEK

TASK 13 Network with other watershed coordinators throughout the region and state

and exchange lessons learned.

Subtask A: Travel to Sacramento or other determined locations to participate in Mar 2019 - | $6,933.48

watershed coordinator trainings and networking opportunities. Mar 2021

Performance Measures:

a. Skills gained on facilitation, conflict resolution, grant writing, grant management,

and other related watershed coordinator duties
GRAND $228,264.07
TOTAL
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5. BUDGET

PERSONNEL* [Hourly Rate/Unit CostNumber of hours/unit] _Task 1 Task 2 Task 3 Task 4 Task 5 Task 6 Task 7 Task 8 Task 9 Task10 = Task1l Task 12 Task 13 |Total Requested Grant Funds
Watershed Coordinator A $37.17 3,744|$31,093.00 [$10,932.00 | $2,435.00 | $4,935.00 ' $2,343.40 [$17,530.00 | $12,925.00 | $17,935.00 | $5,935.00 [$14,661.27 ' $9.400.00 | $5,600.00 | $3,452.00 $139,176.67
Watershed Coordination Manag $80.00 | 416/815,360.00 | $3,520.00 $2,400.00 | $2,000.00 | $2,000.00 | $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $33,280.00
Maidu S it Consortium $40.00 375 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
‘Subtotal $46,453.00 | $14,452.00 | $2,435.00 | $4,935.00 $2,343.40 | $19,930.00 | $14,925.00 | $19,935.00 | $9,935.00 |$14,661.27 = $9,400.00 |$24,600.00 | $3,452.00 |$187,456.67
TRAVEL COSTS ;
Travel: Within watershed (group and i
subcommittee meetings) $0.58/mile 4,439 miles $946.56 $473.28 $591.60 $238.73 324.8 $2,574.97
Travel: To required meetings (S ) $0.58/mile 3,000 miles $1,740 $1,740.00
Lodging: For required meetings (S: ) |$95/night 8 nights $760 $760.00
Subtotal $946.56 $473.28 |$ S $591.60 |$ S S $ $238.73 S $324.80 | $2,500.00 [$5,074.97
SUPPLIES guurly Rate/Unit CostNumber of hours/unit{ Task 1 Task 2 Task 3 Task 4 Task 5 Task 6 Task 7 Task 8 Task 9 Task 10 Task 11 Task 12 Task 13 |Total Req d Grant Funds
Printing $0.01/B&W; $0.06/co:14,571 pages $100 $75 $65 $65 $65 $70 $75 $65 $65 $100 $200 $75 $1,020.00
News rel $50 8 ads $400 $400.00
Computer and software $2,000 i1 $2,000 $2,000.00
‘Subtotal $2,100 $75 $65 $65 $65 $70 $75 $65 $65 $100 $600 $75 |8 $3,420.00
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS** A Task 1 Task 2 Task 3 Task 4 Task 5 Task 6 Task 7 Task 8 Task 9 Task 10 Task 11 Task 12 Task 13
Office/Occupancy Expenses 5% operating costs $408.12 $123.68 $20.61 $41.23 $24.74 $164.90 $123.68 $164.90 $82.45 $123.68 $82.45 $206.12 $49.07 $1,615.62
Office Supplies 2% operating costs $163.25 $49.47 $8.25 $16.49 $9.89 $65.96 $49.47 $65.96 $32.98 $49.47 $32.98 $82.45 $19.63 $646.25
Printing/postage 1% operating costs $81.62 $24.74 $4.12 $8.25 $4.95 $32.98 $24.74 $32.98 $16.49 $24.74 $16.49 $41.22 $9.81 $323.12
Accounting/administrative staff 87% operating costs $7,101.36 $2,151.99 $358.66| $717.32°  $430.39| $2,869.26| $2,151.95| $2,869.26| $1,434.63| $2,151.95' $1,434.63| $3,586.55| $853.89 $28,111.81
Meetings (e.g., Board meetings, community
etc.) 5% operating costs $408.12 $123.68 $20.61 $41.23 $24.74 $164.90 $123.68 $164.90 $82.45 $123.68 $82.45 $206.12 $49.07 $1,615.62
:Subtotal $8,162.48| $2,473.55 $412.25| $824.50  $494.70| $3,298.00| $2,473.50| $3,298.00| $1,649.00( $2,473.50. $1,649.00| $4,122.47| $981.48($32,312.43
TOTAL $57,662.04 | $17,473.83 | $2,912.25 | $5,824.50 $3,494.70 | $23,298.00 | $17,473.50 |$23,298.00 |$11,649.00 |$17,473.50 ' $11,649.00 | $29,122.27 | $6,933.48 |5228,264.07
MATCHING FUNDS Subtotal Task 1 Task 2 Task3 Task 4 Task 5 Task 6 Task 7 Task 8 Task 9 Task 10 Task 11 Task 12 Task 13
NEPA production (Cal Fire) ] $400,000.00 $400,000.00
Facilitation/Coordination, BHCCWG (USFS) I $30,000.00 $30,000.00
S ide, landscape scale dination (USFS $20,000.00 $20,000.00
Natural resource education (USFS) $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Maidu Summit Consortium consultation (Cal
Fire) $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Subtotal S S $400,000.00{$ $30,000.00($ S S $ $5,000.00 S $10,000.00| $20,000.00{8465,000.00
TOTAL PROJECT PROPOSED COSTS ] $693,264.07

*Salaries include benefits
**Administrative costs are equal to Sierra Institute's federally approvei rate (16.49%)
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February 7, 2019
DOC Watershed Coordinator Grant Proposal Language and Votes

Grant Language:

The Board of Directors of the Sierra Institute for Community and Environment (Sierra Institute) hereby
authorizes the submittal of an application to the Forest Health Watershed Coordinator Grant Program.
We also authorize entrance into a Grant agreement with the Department of Conservation if the project is
awarded funding and accept the template terms and conditions of said agreement. Furthermore, we
certify that there is no conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict of interest, for any member of this
Board of Directors as it relates to this project. Finally, we authorize Mr. Jonathan Kusel, Executive
Director of the Sierra Institute, to execute tasks, such as signing documents, related to the application,
grant agreement, and acquisition, if the project is awarded funding.

Gerry Gray

Secretary, Sierra Institut ommunity gid Environment Board of Directors

Votes via email on February 6,2019:

10 of 12 Board of Directors gave unanimous approval: aye.
Two Board of Directors were absent.
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USDA
=

United States Forest Lassen National Forest 2550 Riverside Drive
Department of Service Supervisor's Office Susanville, CA 96130
Agriculture 530 257-2151
TDD: 530 257-2151
Fax: 530 252-6428

B

File Code: 2500
Date:  January 30, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

The Lassen National Forest (Lassen NF) supports Sierra Institute for Community and
Environment’s (Sierra Institute) proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed
Coordinator grant program. The Lassen values Sierra Institute’s commitment to advance
collaborative solutions to pressing watershed management issues, including forest health and
resilience.

The landscape managed by the Lassen National Forest is increasingly threatened by high severity
wildfires, having deleterious impacts on water quality and quantity. In an effort to advance
landscape-scale collaborative restoration and forest health projects, the Sierra Institute
coordinates the South Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG) in cooperative project planning and
design, promising to address critical resource management issues on the ground.

With the support of partners like the Sierra Institute, the Lassen National Forest is able to better
coordinate with neighboring landowners, increasing the reach of its efforts. Furthermore, by
including diversity of stakeholders the SLWG allows the Lassen National Forest to understand
and address the concerns of important regional interests, including Tribal groups and nonprofits.

As an active member of SLWG and critical landowner within the SLWG footprint, the Lassen
National Forest dedicates staff time, area expertise, local data, and associated resources to
support collaborative planning and implementation of projects focused on improving watershed
and community health.

The Lassen National Forest is also a key stakeholder in the Burney-Hat Creek Community Forest
and Watershed Group, a Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program group facilitated
by the Sierra Institute.

The Lassen National Forest values and supports the Sierra Institute’s facilitation of SLWG and
recognizes its critical contribution to improving social and ecological conditions in this critical
region. We believe that support of this effort will increase the pace and scale of critical
restoration and management activities in the region.

~
Caring for the Land and Serving People Printed on Recycled Paper W

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
19



Watershed Coordinator Program Manager

We look forward to our continued involvement with this project, for which we strongly
recommend your support.

Sincerely,

CHRISTIAN SCHOW
Acting Forest Supervisor

cc: Carol Thornton; Russell Nickerson; Janine Book
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United States Department of the Interior

NATIONAL

! PARK
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE NG
Lassen Volcanic National Park
PO Box 100

Mineral, CA 96063

IN REPLY REFER TO:
Lassen Letter, SI DOC grant

February 15, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection
801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

Lassen Volcanic National Park (LAVO) supports Sierra Institute for Community and Environment’s
(Sierra Institute) proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator grant
program. The Sierra Institute is integral to the coordination of collaborative efforts, responsive to
environmental and community needs, in critical upper watersheds.

As a National Park Service unit, LAVO works to preserve natural and cultural resources for future
generations on more than 100,000 acres of Federal public lands, including the headwaters of the North
Fork of the Feather River and Mill Creek. LAVO is a founding member of the South Lassen Watersheds
Group (SLWG), serving on the strategic planning and executive subcommittee. LAVO and Sierra
Institute staff work closely to manage SLWG projects related to the planning and implementation of fuels
reduction and forest health activities within Park boundaries. LAVO is also a member of the Burney-Hat
Creek Community Forest and Watershed Group, a Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program
group facilitated by the Sierra Institute.

As an active member of SLWG and project partner of the Sierra Institute, LAVO dedicates staff time,
area expertise, local data, and associated resources, to the efforts of planning and implementing projects
focused on improving watershed and community health. These contributions improve the Watershed
Coordinator’s efficacy in prioritizing group projects, and in crafting and managing project-related grant
funds. LAVO contributes to the SLWG effort in recognition of the need to act at the watershed scale and
across jurisdictions in order to produce meaningful outcomes for human and ecological communities
alike.

The Sierra Institute’s facilitation of SLWG and associated projects represent a valuable contribution to
improving conditions within critical upper watersheds. We look forward to our continued involvement in
this project and recommend your support.

Sincerely,

2 ——

Steve Buckley
Ecologist/Botanist
Lassen Volcanic National Park
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January 15, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection
801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

Collins Pine Company (Collins) supports Sierra Institute for Community and Environment’s
(Sierra Institute) proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator
grant program. Collins commits its ongoing collaboration to achieve mutually beneficial goals,
namely Sierra Institute’s coordination of large-scale efforts to positively impact human and
environmental health within critical upper watersheds.

Collins owns and sustainably manages the Forest Stewardship Council-certified Collins Almanor
Forest, totaling 94,000 acres within the North Fork of the Feather River, Mill Creek, and Deer
Creek watersheds. Collins has been a member of the South Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG)
since its inception, and serves on the group’s strategic planning and executive subcommittee.
Collins Pine has also provided professional expertise and consulting services to the Sierra
Institute in implementing forest management activities.

As a key member of SLWG, Collins dedicates staff time, expertise, and associated resources to
the effort of facilitating project planning and implementation in partnership with Federal, State,
and private entities. These contributions assist the Watershed Coordinator in drafting guiding
documents for group process, and crafting and managing project-related grant funds. Collins
contributes these resources with the recognition that the collaborative process facilitated by the
Sierra Institute is instrumental in building effective partnerships with affected stakeholders to
produce on-the-ground outcomes.

The Sierra Institute’s effort to advance the work of the SLWG will expand the scope of necessary
management activities across the critical watersheds in which we work by coordinating the efforts
and priorities of regional interests. We are enthusiastic about the development of, and our
involvement in, this project and highly recommend your support.

Respectfully,

= .

Paul M. Harlan
VP, Resources
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Sierra Pacific Indusiries

P.O. Box 496014 - Redding, California 96049-6014
Phone (530) 378-8000 - FAX (530) 378-8139

January 18, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

Sierra Pacific Industries (SPI) supports Sierra Institute for Community and Environment’s
(Sierra Institute) proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator
grant program. The Sierra Institute is instrumental in coordinating large-scale efforts to
cooperatively plan and implement forest health projects in critical upper watersheds with
meaningful ecological and social impacts.

SPI is the largest private landowner in the South Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG) footprint.
SPI has been a member of the SLWG since its inception and is a regular contributor to
subcommittee efforts. SPI partners with the Sierra Institute and group stakeholders to plan and
implement projects within the SLWG footprint, including a multi-jurisdictional project funded
by Cal Fire.

As a key member of SLWG, SPI dedicates staff time, expertise, and associated resources to the
effort of facilitating project planning and implementation in partnership with Federal, State, and
private entities. These contributions assist the Watershed Coordinator in drafting guiding
documents for group process, and crafting and managing project-related grant funds. SPI
contributes these resources as an indicator of their support for the collaborative process
facilitated by the Sierra Institute, and their commitment to producing large-scale, multiple benefit
outcomes.

The Sierra Institute’s effort to advance the work of the SLWG will expand the scope of
necessary management activities across the critical watersheds in which we work by
coordinating the efforts and priorities of regional interests. We are enthusiastic about the
development of, and our involvement in, this project and highly recommend your support.

Sincerely,
Mike Mitzel
Northern Sierra Area Manager, Sierra Pacific Industries
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February 5, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

The Maidu Summit Consortium (MSC) hereby expresses its support for Sierra
Institute for Community and Environment’s (Sierra Institute) submission to the
Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator grant program. The Sierra
Institute is an important player in the advancement of collaboration in our critical
upper watersheds, producing meaningful social and ecological outcomes.

In 2019, the MSC will be deeded 2,325 acres within the SLWG footprint via the
Pacific Forest and Watershed Lands Stewardship Council. The MSC’s landholdings
will be used, in part, to demonstrate the positive impacts of traditional Maidu land
management practices. The MSC has been a years-long partner of the Sierra Institute
and is an active participant in both SLWG and LAWG and has been funded, via a
separate Sierra Institute grant award, to provide 400 hours of consultation services to
the SLWG. Said consultation will result in identification of priority areas for the use
of Maidu Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK) within the planning boundary, as
well as various means of including TEK into both project design and implementation.

As an active member of the SLWG and a partner on grant funded projects, the MSC
will dedicate the time of staff and community members to perform consultation,
inform strategic planning efforts, and produce guiding documents for the group
related to Maidu TEK. As a LAWG member, the MSC dedicates staff time and
associated resources to project planning and implementation, as well as the expansion
of regional water quality monitoring. These contributions assist the Watershed
Coordinator in facilitating projects that meaningfully incorporate traditional
knowledge and practices for improved outcomes.

In continuing and expanding the work of the SLWG, the Sierra Institute will ensure
that management activities, reflective of the priorities of diverse stakeholders, are
pursued in critical upper watersheds. We strongly recommend your support for this
effort.

Sincerely,

72—

Ken Holbrook
Executive Director, Maidu Summit Consortium

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds

24

info@maidusummit.org



Fall River Resource Conservation District

Telephone/Fax: (530) 336-6591/336-5618
e-mail fallriverrcd@citlink.net

Post Office Box 83
McArthur, CA 96056

February 13, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

To Whom It May Concern:

The Fall River Resource Conservation District (Fall River RCD) supports Sierra Institute for Community and
Environment’s (Sierra Institute) proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator
grant program. The Sierra Institute fills an essential role in the coordination of collaborative efforts and
response to environmental and community needs in critical upper watersheds, including the Feather River and
Pit River.

The Fall River RCD supports private and public landowners in the use and management of natural resources,

_ensuring sustained economic, social, and environmental benefits across an approximately 1.2 million-acre
landscape in northeastern California. As a primary partner of the Burney-Hat Creek Community Forest and
Watershed Group (BHC), facilitated by the Sierra Institute, the Fall River RCD works closely with Sierra
Institute and project partners to advance the planning and implementation of forest and watershed health
projects throughout the RCD’s jurisdietion, including the core 364,000-acre BHC footprint, which lies adjacent
to the South Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG) planning unit. As the SLWG matures and projects become
more defined, there is critical opportunity to coordinate and collaborate across adjacent boundaries to achieve
landscape-level objectives.

To increase the impact of coordinated efforts at the watershed scale and across all jurisdictions, the Fall River
RCD dedicates staff time, area expertise, local data, and associated resources to the efforts of planning and
implementing projects focused on improving watershed and community health. These contributions improve
Sierra Institute and other partners’ efficacy in prioritizing collaborative projects.

The Sierra Institute’s facilitation of SLWG, BHC, and associated projects represent a valuable contribution to
improving conditions within critical upper watersheds. Given the long-standing partnership between Sierra
Institute and the Fall River RCD and the mutual goals of both BHCCFWG and SLWG to advance landscape-
level forest and watershed projects at an increased pace and scale, the Fall River RCD strongly recommends
your support for Sierra Institute’s proposal. '

Sincerely,

Zead Wl

Todd Sloat
Fall River Resource Conservation District
Watershed Prinicpal
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February 8, 2019

Butte County Resource Conservation District
150 Chuck Yeager Way, Ste. A
Oroville, CA 95965 '

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

The Butte County Resource Conservation District (BCRCD) hereby supports the Sierra
Institute for Community and Environment’s (Sierra Institute) proposal for a watershed
coordinator for the South Lassen Watersheds and Lake Almanor Watershed Groups. The
BCRCD has also submitted a watershed coordinator grant application for adjacent watersheds.
We see each other as cooperators rather than competitors, and know we will both accomplish
mote by sharing information and collaborating on regional projects.

BCRCD is a special district whose sphere of influence covers Butte County. BCRCD’s
mission is to protect, enhance, and support Butte County agriculture and natural resources by
working with willing landowners and citizens through education, land management, and on-the-
ground projects. Working with private, local, state and federal actors, BCRCD strives to find
win-win outcomes that protect soil, water and biodiversity. Through various MOUs and special
agreements, BCRCD sometimes performs work in adjacent counties, and welcomes other RCDs
and groups with specialized knowledge or capacity to work on Butte County projects as well.

The Sierra Institute’s project area dovetails well with BCRCD’s. Our two groups
consulted early on to make sure our boundaries fit with each other and to verify our project areas
made sense ecologically, hydrologically, and socially. A division of the Feather River watershed
into an upper and lower zone, with strong collaboration between the two, recognizes that unique
conditions and needs of these regions. This approach will enhance each group’s effectiveness
and yield greater results.

To maximize results, regional collaboration is critical. Therefore, if both proposals are
funded, the BCRCD is committed to collaborating with the Sierra Institute to achieve shared
watershed goals as spelled out in the budget and scope of work.

Sincgsly,

4
A wf, 1
Dave Lee .
Chairman, Butte County RCD Board of Directors
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\yoper Feather Rive,
Integrated

Regional Water Management Group

555 Main Street | Quincy, CA | 95971 | (530) 283-6214 | http://featherriver.org | ufr.contact@gmail.com

February 12, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: Support for Sierra Institute’s Watershed Coordinator Grant Application

To Whom It May Concern:

The Upper Feather River Integrated Regional Water Management Program (Upper Feather River IRWM) hereby
expresses its support for Sierra Institute for Community and Environment’s (Sierra Institute) submission to the
Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator grant program. Collaborators like the Sierra Institute are
instrumental in advancing regional efforts to collectively address critical watershed issues.

The Upper Feather River IRWM works to implement an integrated strategy for protecting and managing sustainable
water resources throughout its planning footprint, which incorporates 3,604 square miles of the northern Sierra
Nevada. As an active stakeholder in the South Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG), the Upper Feather IRWM contributes
to the group’s planning efforts, identifying opportunities to incorporate SLWG projects into the IRWM portfolio and
vice versa. Furthermore, the IRWM portfolio includes three project concepts from the Lake Almanor Watershed Group
(LAWG), an effort coordinated by the Sierra Institute and nested within the SLWG footprint with a focus on water
quality improvements.

Nurturing partnerships between stakeholders such as Sierra Institute and the Upper Feather River IRWM through
collaborative groups like SLWG and LAWG is vital to pursuing the collective mission to strategically and consistently
integrate planning, management, and coordination efforts in the region. The IRWM is committed to increasing the
impact of these efforts by creating connections with available resources, and believes that Sierra Institute’s role in local
and regional efforts will be enhanced with increased support for watershed coordination.

In continuing and expanding the work of the SLWG and LAWG, the Sierra Institute will ensure that necessary
management activities are undertaken in critical upper watersheds. We look forward to our continued involvement in
this effort, and strongly recommend your support for this application.

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
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Please contact us if you have any questions regarding our support for the Sierra Institutes involvement in this grant
process.

Sincerely,

Uma Hinman

Upper Feather River IRWM Coordinator
ON BEHALF OF:

Sharon Thrall, Chair
Upper Feather River Integrated Regional Water Management Group

cc: Jonathan Kusel, Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
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PO' nt Blue Conservation science for a healthy planet
COI’]SG rvat IOﬂ 3820 Cypress Drive, #11 Petaluma, CA 94954
Science T 707.781.2555 | F 707.765.1685

pointblue.org
(formerly PRBO)

January 22, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

Point Blue Conservation Science (Point Blue) hereby expresses its support for Sierra Institute for
Community and Environment’s (Sierra Institute) submission to the Department of Conservation’s 2019
Watershed Coordinator grant program. Collaborators like the Sierra Institute are instrumental in
advancing regional efforts to collectively address critical watershed issues.

Point Blue works within the North Fork of the Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek, and surrounding
watersheds to promote ecosystem resilience to a changing climate. Point Blue assists private and public
landowners in designing and implementing projects that are responsive to environmental needs and
grounded in local science and adaptive management. Point Blue has been a decades-long partner in
Sierra Institute’s collaborative forest and watershed restoration efforts, beginning with the Almanor
Basin Watershed Advisory Committee, predecessor to the Lake Almanor Watershed Group and South
Lassen Watersheds Group (SLWG).

As an active member of the SLWG and participant on the group’s strategic planning and executive
subcommittee, Point Blue has and will dedicate staff time, including providing local ecological data and
expertise, to advance the established goals of the group. These contributions assist the Watershed
Coordinator in drafting strategic planning documentation, crafting project-related grant applications, and
liaising with landowners in project design and implementation.

In continuing and expanding the work of the SLWG, the Sierra Institute will ensure that necessary
management activities are undertaken in critical upper watersheds. We look forward to our continued
involvement in this effort, and recommend your support.

Sincerely,

Ryan D. Burnett
Director, Sierra Nevada Group, Point Blue Conservation Science
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Mountain Meadows Conservancy

P.O. Box40 Westwood, California 96137-0040

January 10, 2019

Watershed Coordinator Program Manager
Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection
801 K Street, MS 18-01

Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern:

Mountain Meadows Conservancy (MMC) supports Sierra Institute for Community and Environment’s (Sierra Institute)
proposal to the Department of Conservation’s 2019 Watershed Coordinator grant program. For over two decades, the
Sierra Institute has been a key contributor to and coordinator of collaborative watershed improvement efforts in the Lake
Almanor Basin and adjacent watersheds.

Since 2001, MMC has worked to conserve and enhance the natural beauty and environmental health of the Mountain
Meadows watershed, protect its significant Mountain Maidu burial and cultural sites, and provide recreation and public
access throughout the Mountain Meadows Basin, a subwatershed of the North Fork of the Feather River. As a
longstanding partner of the Lake Almanor Watershed Group (LAWG) and the newly formed South Lassen Watersheds
Group (SLWG), MMC values the technical expertise and efforts Sierra Institute contributes to advanmng common visions
of Feather River region stakeholders. MMC works closely with the Sierra Institute and other LAWG members to
contribute proposals to Feather River Integrated Watershed Management Plan to implement water quality improvement
projects, enhance habitat for fish and wildlife, and bolster public awareness and community health throughout the
Almanor Basin.

MMC dedicates staff time, intimate knowledge of local fisheries and meadow ecosystems, and connections to local social
networks to both collaborative groups to support projects focused on watershed and community health. These
contributions support the Watershed Coordinator’s ability to connect human and financial resources to all-lands projects
in critical upper watersheds. We look forward to our continued involvement with the Sierra Institute in the SLWG and
LAWG projects and strongly recommend your support.

Sincerely,

Ao Form

Ronald Lunder

President, Mountain Meadows Conservancy

Mountain Meadows Conservancy e P:530-256-3982 e E:mtnmeadow@frontier.com e www.mtmeadows.org
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The following is in response to Item 9: Proof of Applicant Capacity. Attachments are included thereafter in the
following order:

1. Copy of the current annual organizational budget

2. Copy of the most recent financial audit

3. Copy of the most recent Federal form 990

4. Copy of the most recent IRS 501(c)(3)

The Sierra Institute has been working with collaborative groups focused on forest and watershed health for
25 years. Sierra Institute launched the Lake Almanor Watershed Group in 2003, helped launch the Burney Hat
Creek Community Forest and Watershed Project in 2010, and launched the South Lassen Watersheds Group in
early 2017. Sierra Institute works to advance triple-bottom line work and collaborative natural resource
management. Sierra Institute conducted a study of Resource Advisory Committees (Title 1l of the Secure Rural
Schools and Community Self-Determination Act), the first federally mandated collaborative process to
advance natural resource projects on Forest Service land. Sierra Institute continues its study of collaborative
processes and work with groups across the State of California through its Sierra to California All-lands
Enhancement (SCALE) project. The Sierra Institute also coordinates the Disadvantaged and Tribal Community
Involvement Program for the Mountain Counties funding area, a region that includes nine regional water
management groups covering most of the Sierra Nevada. The watershed coordinator will benefit from local
and statewide social networks and relationships built through SI’s history in the region as well as SCALE and
DAC projects. Sierra Institute also conducted a two-year retroactive assessment of the California Statewide
Watershed program, generating an extensive report that compiled lessons learned over a 15-year period. The
report was published February 2019.

The Sierra Institute’s Board of Directors is comprised of regional and national experts in the fields of
forest health, carbon accounting, socioeconomic wellbeing, and financial management. Board members
regularly assist staff via mentoring and information exchange to improve project outcomes. The Sierra Institute
Board of Directors meets quarterly and receives regular project updates from staff members, including
progress related to watershed coordination efforts.

Dr. Jonathan Kusel, the project lead, has an extensive background in human dimensions of natural
resource management, specializing in collaborative approaches. He received a Ph.D. in Natural Resource
Sociology and Policy from the University of California, Berkeley where he also received a post-doctoral
fellowship in resource economics. Kyle Rodgers, Sierra Institute’s Stewardship Liaison, coordinates the
SCALE collaborative network, and has expertise assessing forest health, monitoring threatened species, and
writing environmental planning documents. Kyle holds a B.S. in Conservation Biology from Clemson
University and a M.S. in Wildlife & Fisheries Science from the University of Tennessee.

The watershed coordinator will be assisted by SI’s diverse staff, including the Financial Manager to aid
with grant invoicing, SI’s Director of Development to improve outreach strategies and fundraising abilities and
organization of volunteers, and SI’s internship program to aid with meeting logistics, media, and other tasks.
Additionally, SI’s general funds support from the Satterberg Foundation will enable the watershed coordinator
to participate in organization-wide staff development activities, including various trainings and events that
align with the organization mission.
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Sierra Institute GRANTS and AGREEMENTS REPORT

Feb-19

Expenditures Original Grant
Program Total Grant Admin % Through 2018  FY19 Budget Amended Budget Remaining for
Community Based Natural Resources Management
Burney Hat Creek $197,356.00 16.49% $126,469.61 $35,000.00 $25,000.00
Department of Conservation $499,999.00 12.90% $482,260.87 $17,738.13
Lake Almanor Watershed Group $13,517.54 2% $12,738.46 $779.08
Master Stewardship Agreement $172,222.49 16.49% $81,992.97 $43,320.00 $46,909.52
Sierra NV Yellow Frog Monitoring $35,639.00 16.49% $3,527.61 $6,939.83 $25,171.56
Sierra to Ca All Lands Enhancement $445,799.17 17.48% $331,209.80 $114,589.37
South Lassen Watershed Group
Ca Climate Initiative $3,000,000.00 9.25% $8,107.51| $1,483,061.00 $1,508,831.49
PG&E $100,000.00 15% $79,979.54 $20,020.46
SNC#1 $74,966.00 10% $53,866.16 $21,099.84
SNC#2 $494,783.00 10% $3,138.75 $491,644.25
BOR $100,000.00 16.49% $60,000.00 $40,000.00
Total Community Based NRM $5,134,282.20 $1,183,291.28| $2,294,191.96 $1,605,912.57
Rural Community Development
Disadvantage Communities and Tribal Involv. $1,098,720.00 $321,484.53 $400,000.00 $377,235.47
Rural Community Development Initiative (2) $250,000.00 16.49% $202,693.39 $47,306.61
Socioecomonic Monitoring
Amandor Calaveras Consensus Grp $51,025.00 16.49% $21,428.90 $29,596.10 $0.00
Burney Hat Creek $52,690.00 16.49% $0.00 $42,690.00 $10,000.00
Sierra/Fish Fellows |
Plumas Natl Forest $116,843.00 16.49% $66,637.58 $25,714.01 $24,491.41
FR Trout Unlimited $29,018.50 $0.00 $29,018.50
Donations | $1,530.68
Sierra NV Yellow Frolg Monitoring $35,639.00 16.49% $3,527.61 $6,939.83 $25,171.56
Total Rural Community Development $1,598,296.50 $612,244.40 $575,855.90 $411,726.88
Wood Utilization
Biomass Heat (Quincy)
California Energy Commission $2,385,261.00 20.24%  $2,332,959.37 $52,301.63 $0.00
Sierra Nevada Conservancy #916 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Thermal Energy Service Agreement $10,233.61 $29,946.24 -$19,712.63
Wood Products Campus(C. Mills)
Weyerhaueser #1 $27,000.00 10% $3,980.29 $3,980.29
[ #2 $24,500.00 10% $0.00 $16,500.00 $8,000.00
Barrett $100,000.00 10% $78,482.18 $21,517.82
EPA: |
Plumas County $42,800.00 $26,749.53 $16,050.47
Clean Up $600,000.00 $1,009.52 $448,990.48 $151,009.52
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Sierra Nevada Conservance #84 $350,000.00 $119,401.09 $230,598.91
Weyerhaeuser Year 1 $27,000.00 $20,519.71 $6,480.29
Weyerhaeuser Year 2 $24,500.00 $15,000.00 $9,000.00
Wood Innovations $250,000.00 10% $84,029.00 $165,971.00
Other |
Humledt Biopower $40,000.00 $21,359.10 $18,640.90
Total Wood Utilization| $3,916,294.61 $351,550.13 $976,319.16 $168,009.52
Youth Stewardship
Greenville HS Natural Resources $297,186.65 $237,897.22 $59,289.43
P-CREW
Feather River Land Trust $20,000.00 13.54% $20,000.00 $0.00
Lassen NF $590,130.17 16.49% $201,640.10 $95,000.00 $293,490.07
Plumas NF $497,656.00 16.77% $490,045.59 $7,610.41
Rocky Mt. Elk Foundation $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00
Plumas Unified School District $13,554.92 $11,795.05 $1,759.87
Resource Advisory Committee $30,000.00 16.49% $30,000.00 $0.00
SNC LVNP #2 $80,000.00 $80,000.00
South Lassen Watershed Group $15,550.00 $15,881.38 -$331.38
Youth Outside $31,250.00 16.49% $27,046.67 $35,453.33 $30,000.00
Donations $1,902.91 $0.00 $1,902.91
Recreation
Friday Night for Teens $10,415.05 $8,223.78 $2,191.27
Greenville Outdoor Adventure Learning
Total Youth Stewardship $1,612,645.70 $1,042,529.79 $307,875.84 $323,490.07
General Support
Satterburg $300,000.00 $65,869.37 $110,000.00 $140,000.00
Donations $6,225.66
General other Accts
Vacation and sick $55,065.10
Sabatical Leave $33,665.38
Administration $52,520.17
Interest $1,003.00
Vehicles $7,047.05
Property $5,318.93
Paradise PCREW $2,898.41

Total w/o General and Other Accts

Total All

$4,270,468.52

$4,384,375.72
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FINANCIAL AUDIT (2017)
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY
AND ENVIRONMENT
Audited Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

SingletonAumanec

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT
Audited Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, cpa, Msacc

%SingletonAumanPC John E. Auman, cpa

Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

Board of Directors
Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
Taylorsville, CA 95983

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sierra Institute for
Community and Environment (a nonprofit Organization) which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related statement of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ‘

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemients are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Institute’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial staterments.

Susanville: 1 Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWW,sa-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax:530.258.2282
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Sierra Institute for Community and Environment as
of December 31, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Respectfully submitted,

%\.ﬂ\/} A=

SingletonAuman P
Susanville, CA
July 23, 2018
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SIERRA INSTUTE FOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2017

2017

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 230,862

Accounts Receivable 249,223

Land, Improvements, and Equipment, Net 1,475,986
Total assets : $ 1,956,071
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3 225,646

Accrued payroll liabilities 1,196

Accrued compensated absences 30,518

Unearned revenue 82,116
Total liabilities : 339,476
Net assets:

- Unrestricted 1,688,955
Temporarily Restricted : : 17,640
Total net assets: ‘ 1,616,585

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,956,071

See accompanying notes and accountant's report
3
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

2017
Temporarily
Support and Revenue Unrestricted Restricted Total
Support
Grant Income $ 2613817 $ - $ 2,613,817
Donations/Contributions 647,192 - 647,192
Revenue '
In-Kind 645,705 - 645,705
Interest 317 - 317
Other 11,676 7,336 19,012
Net assets released from restrictions - (10,530) (10,530}
Total suppqrt and revenue 3,918,707 (3,194) 3,915,513
Expenses
Program Expenses 2,465,184 - 2,465,184
Management and General 149,632 - 148,632
Total Expenses , 2,614,816 - 2,614,816
Change in net assets 1,303,881 ' (3,194} 1,300,697
Net assets, beginning of year 295,064 20,834 . 315,898
Net assets, end of year $ 1,598,955 § 17,640 $ 1,616,595

See accompanying notes and accountant's report
4 .
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Salaries and Benefits
In Kind

Conferences and meetings
Professional Services
Contract Labor
Insurance

Office

Property Taxes
Travel and Training
Biomass Expense
Other

Depreciation

Total Functional Expenses

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 314, 2017

2017
Program Management

Services and General Total
$ 676,057 111,936 § 787,993
645,705 - 645,705
23,320 986 24,306
36,150 5530 41,680
989,914 - 989,914
1,699 5,224 6,923
11,579 13,316 24 895
160 1,650 1,710
33,404 2,592 35,996
15,207 - 15,207
26,327 6,040 32,367
5,662 2,458 8,120
3 2 465 184 149632 § 2,614,816

See accompanying notes and accountant's report
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017

2017

Operating activities

Change in net assets $ 1,300,697
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 8,120
Decrease (Increase) in receivables (160,222}
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable . 208,006
Increase {Decrease) in accrued liabilities (3,194}
Increase (Decrease) in accrued payroll liabilities {13,586)
Increase {Decrease) in deferred revenue 82,117
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,421,938

Investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (1,377,882)
Net cash provided (used) by Investing activities {1,377,882)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 44,056
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnipg of year 186,806
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year $ 230:_862
Amount Paid for [nterest 3 -

Amount Paid for Income Taxes 3 -

See accompanying notes and accountant's report
6 ‘
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Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Sierra Institute for Community and Environment (Institute)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The following is a summary of the more
significant policies.

A. Nature of Activities

The Institute works with rural communities to advance rural community wellbeing and
sustainable ecosystems. Founded in 1993, the Institute is a non-governmental, non-profit
research (501(c)(3)) and education organization based in the norther Sierra Nevada town of
Taylorsville, California.

Research, education, and community collaboration are the tools of their trade. The Institute's
work ranges from researching the ouicomes of a national law on rural communities, to leading
tours on the land to showcase rural people’s involvement in taking care of forests, meadows,
and waterways, to pilot bicenergy facilities and sharing lessons learned with partners in and
beyond California, to testifying in the halls of Congress.

The Institute partners with diverse communities and decision-makers to address four major
program areas; socioeconomic monitoring and assessment, community forestry and natural
resources, environmental justice, and rural community development and capacity building.

B. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

C. Confributions/Donated Materials and Facilities

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions’ of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values 'in the period
received. Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that
require specialized skills, that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would
typically otherwise need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their fair
values in the period received.
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Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

D. Grants

Grants that are determined to be confributions, as defined by Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 958-605, Not for Profit Entities — Presentation of Financial Statements, are reporied as
temporarily restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that require certain
objectives of the grant to be met. When these donor objectives are satisfied, that is when a
purpose restriction has been accomplished, temporarily restricted net assefs are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets are released
from restrictions. Grants that are determined to be an exchange transaction as defined by ASC
958-605 are not considered contributions and are reported as an increase in unrestricted net
assets when the revenue is earned. ‘ '

E. Property, Furniture and Equipment

The Institute has satisfactory title to all fixed assets acquired by or donated to the Institute.

The Institute follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property, furniture, fixtures
and equipment in excess of $500. All fixed asset expenditures are capitalized at cost and assets
donated to the Institute are recorded at their estimated values at the date of receipt.
Depreciation of all such items is computed on the straight-line method over useful lives of 5-39

years.

F. Income Taxes

The Institute is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore, the Institute has
made no provision for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial statements, In
addition, Institute has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private
foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Institute has also adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes. As a result of this implementation, the Institute evaluates potential tax liabilities
for current year and prior year tax returns. The Institute currently does not anticipate any future
tax liahility as a result of the adoption of Interpretation 48.

The Institute’s returns are subject to examination by the federal government and the state of
California generally for 3 years and 4 years, respectively, after they are filed.

G. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires the use of management’'s estimates. Actual results could differ from those
estimates
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Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

- NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

H. Functional Aliocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, costs related to the operation of the
facility and administrative duties of the institute have been allocated among the programs
services based on a percentage of total direct costs.

l, Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the Institute.

J. Cash and cash equivalents

For financial statement purposes, the Institute considers investments with an initial maturlty date
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Federal Depository Insurance Corporations insures cash balances held in banks up to
$250,000. Periodically the Institute’'s cash balances exceed FDIC limits; however, the Institute
believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists for these excess deposits. As of
December 31, 2017, no funds were held in excess of the FDIC limits

K. Unearned Revenue

Deferred revenue represents grant funds which have been received, but for which the
prescribed grant requirements have not been metf. These revenues will be recognized as
income when the requisite grant requirements have been fulfilled.

NOTE 2 — RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

The Institute believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the
financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore,
no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

NOTE 3 — PENSION PLAN

The Foundation sponsors a 403(b) defined contribution plan as part of its employee benefit

package which covers all salaried employees who qualify with respect to age and length of
service. Employer contributions for the plan were $30,267 for the year ended December 31,
2017. The employer match ranges from 4%-8% of employees’ salary.

9
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Sierra Institute for Community. and Environment
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4- FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in Property and Equipment for the year December 31, 2017 is as
follows:

Balance Balance

12/31/2016  Additions Deletions 12/31/2017
Land $ 30,000 $ 175,818 $ 205,818
Buildings and Improvements 91,948 - 91,948
Equipment & Other 51,166 2,440 53,606
Construction in Progress - 1,199,624 1,199,624
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (66,990) (8,120) (75,110)
. Capital Assets, Net $ 106,124 $1,369,762 $ - $1,475,886

NOTE 5 — CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The Institute is under two contracts for the construction of a combined heat and power boiler at
Plumas County’s Health and Human Services Building. One contract with High Sierra CEDC
totals $1,796,558, as of December 31, 2017, and $1,336,307 has been paid out under this
contract. The second contract is with Houston Construction and totals $874,450, as of
December 31, 2017, and $588,501 has been paid out under this contract.

NOTE 6 — RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

As of December 31, 2017, temiporarily restricted net assets consist of $17,640 held in trust for
Lake Almanor Water Quality. '

NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
The Institute is not currently involved in any litigation.

Federal and State Allowances, Awards and Grants

The Institute has received Federal and State Funds for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under the terms of the programs, it is believed that any required reimbursements

will not be material.

10
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Sierra Institute for Community and Environment
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Institute is exposed to various risks of losses related to toris; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and patrons; and natural
disasters. The Institute  has managed these risks by obtaining coverage from commercial
insurance companies as well as providing employee education and prevention programs. The
Institute participates in the Land Institute Alliance easement enforcement and litigation defense
insurance program. Expenses and claims are recognized when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In determining claims, events
that might create claims, but for which none have been reported are considered.

The Institute estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the Institute as of
December 31, 2017 will not materially affect the financial condition of the Institute . Therefore,
the Institute has no provision for estimated claims. Information relating to an analysis of claims
activities for the year was not available.

NOTE 9 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through July 23, 2018, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

11
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Form 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No. 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Uniter section 501(c), 527, or 4947(z)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except nrivate foundations)

2017

» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Forma8a for instructions and the latest information.

A

For the 2017 calendar year, or tax year beginning

, 2017, and ending ,

B Check if applicable:
] Address change
N Mame change

H Initial retumn

: Final retumn/terminated

Amended return

TAYLORSVILLE, CA 95983-0011

Cc D Employer identification number
SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & §1-1818164
ENVIRONMENT E Telephone number

£438 MAIN STREET/POB 11 530-284-1022

G Gross receipts 5

3,265,808,

Application pending

F Name and address of principal officer:

Same As C Above

H(a} Is this a group retumn for subordinates?

H{b) Are all subordinates included?
If 'No," attach a list. (see nstructions)

B

| Taxexempistatus  [X[301(0)3) | ] 501() ( )< (nsertnoy | J4vaianor | [527
J  Website: » http://www.slerrainstitute,us H{c) Group exemption number b
K Form of organization: ‘XI Corporation u Trust | ‘ Association J Cther ™ ‘ L Year of formation: 1980 ' M state of legal domicie: (A
See Scheddle O __ . _
B
B e e e
o
Sl e e
o
% 2 Check this box » D if the organization discontinued its cperations or disposed of more than 25% of iis net assets.
3| 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a). ... ... e o 3 12
":; 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 16 .. .. ... ... .. a 11
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2017 (PartV, IIne 2a). ... ..o ivee i s 5 47
:g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) .. ..o e e 6 30
& 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (Cy, ne 12 ... .. 7a 0.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 ... ........... ... ... ..ol 7h 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o | & Contributions .and grants (Part VIII, |in8 THY 54,777, 3,147,080.
2| ¢ Frogram service revenue Part VIl ine 2g).. ... ..o 1,117,167, 128,411,
% 16 Investment income (Part VIll, column (A}, lines 3, 4, and 7d). ...t 192. 317.
= |11  GCtherrevenue Part VIIl, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 1) ... ..o oL -1,738.
12  Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (&), line 12). ... .. 1,170,398, 2,269, 808.
13 Grants and simitar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3). ... ... ...
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part 1X, column (A), line &) ...,
N 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part 1X, column (A, linas 5-100. ... .. 568,095, 791,013,
% 14 a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (&), line M) ..o oo il
i'}' b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » = —
Y117 Other expensas (Part IX, column (&), lines T1a-11d, 11f-24e). ... ... ... it 485,839, 1,178,098,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), Ine 25, ............ 1,053,934, 1,969,111,
19 Revenue less expanses. Sublract fine 18 from ine 12 ... ... . i i, 116,464, 1,300,697,
§ § Beginring of Current Year End of Year
sE
i 20 Total assets (Part X, Ina 1BY. ..o 471, 348. 1,956,071,
3% 21 Total liabilities Part X, e 263, ... 145,538. 339, 476.
22 22 Netassets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20.. .. ... i, 325,810, 1,616,595,
Signature Block

Under penalhms of perjury, | declare that | have examinad this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and fo the best of my knowledge end bslief, it is true, corect, and

complete. Declaration of preparer (eiher than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any k-aowledgn

Slgn Signature of afficer [Date
Here JONATHAN KUSEL Executive Direc
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Freparar's signature Dale Check u i | PTIN
Paid John A, Kimmel, CPA  [John A, Kimmel, CPA sefempioved | PO0225201
Preparer |rimsname ™ BEQUETTE & KIMMET ACCOUNTANCY CORP
Use Only |rimsaddress ™ 307 MAIN ST Fims EIN > 94-2857321
QUINCY, CA 85871-9121 Pronene. 530-283-0680

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

@ Yes U No

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
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Form 820 (2017) STIERRA TNSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 2
'Partlliz] Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check i Schedule C contains a response or note to any line in this Part 1. ... o o
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

See Schedule O

FOMM 990 08 890-EZ7 ...ttt ettt ettt e et [] ves No
If Yes,' describe these new services on Schedule C.
3 Did the organization cease cenducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. . . ... D Yes No

If "Yes,' describe these changes on Schedule O, -

4 Describe the arganization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses,
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(@) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to othears, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) Expenses $ 1,239,485, including grants of 3 y Revenue  $ )

4¢ (Code: ) (Expenses § 231,308, including grants of S ) Revenue  $ )

monitering
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule 0.) See Schedule O
FExpenses & 93,166. including grants of )y (Revenue 8 )
4e Total program service expenses 1,819,479,
BAA TEEAGID2L  12/D5/17 Form 990 (2017
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Formo90 2017y STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 3
‘PartiIVi Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes| No

1 Is the organization described in section 501{c)(3) or 4947(@)(T) (other than a private fbundatiom)? ff 'Yes,' complete

SCRBAUIE A e X
2 |s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? ... ... ... ... 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect pelitical campaign activities on behaff of or in opposition to candidates

for public office? If Yes,  complete Schedule C, Part L . . . e 3 X
4 Section 507(c)3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) electicn

in effect during the tax year? /f 'Yes,'complete Schadule C, Part 11, . o 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 507(c){4), 501(c)(B), or B01(c)(E) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 898-197 if ‘Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part il ... ... 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right

to provide advice on the disfribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, 5

e 2 6
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the

environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? if 'Yes, complete Schedule D, Part !l ... ... ... ... .. ..., 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? i Yes,'

complete Schadule D, Part 1. . 8 X
3 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liablity, serve as a custodian

for amounts not tisted in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation

sarvices? If Yes, "complete Schedule D, FartiVo. o o 9 X

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,
permanent endowments, or guasi-endowments? If "Yes, ' compiete Schedule D, Part V... o 10 X

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parls VI, VII, VIII, IX,
or X as applicable.

a Did the crganization report an amount for [and, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 If 'Yes,' complete Schedule

T e T Y T1a; X
b Did the organization report an amount for invesiments — othsr securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of ifs tofal
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,' complate Schedule D, Part VI ... . . . . . e 11b X
¢ Did the arganization report an amount for investments — progl'am related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 ff 'Yes,' complete Scheduwie D, Part V. . . . i Mc X
d Did the crganization report an amount for other assets in Part X, ling 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported
in Part X, line 167 /f 'Yes, ' complete Schedule D, Part X, . 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabllities in Part X, line 257 /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X....... {11e| X
i Did the crganization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,  complete Schedule D, Part X .... | 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl . e e 12a X
b Was the organization included In consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If ‘Yes,' and
if the organization answered 'No' fo fine 12a, then complefing Schedule D, Parts X! and X! is optional . ................ 12b| X
13 s the organization a school described in section 1700)0MAXNID? If 'Yes, ' complele Schedule ... ... .. ... 13 X
14 a3 Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . ... ... . . v .. 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expensas of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule F, Parts Fand IV, . . 0 00 14h X
15 Did the organization report on Part X, column (&), fine 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other zssistance to or for any
foreign organization? if 'Yes,' complate Schedule F, Parts il and IV, . .. . . 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part 1X, column (&), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts il and IV .. 16 X
17 Did the organization report a fofal of mare than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part iX,
column (A), lines & and 11e? f 'Yes,” complete Schedule G, Parf [ (see instructions) ... ... .. i . 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 fotal of fundraising event gross inceme and contributions on Part VI,
lines 1c and 8a? if 'Yes, ' complete Schedule G, Fart H. .. 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part Vili, line 9a? /f 'Yes,’
complete Schedule G, Part I e 19 X
BAA TEFAQ103L  0BI0B/17 Form 290 (2017)
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91-1818165 Page 4

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 17 f Yes,' complete Schedule |, Parts tand il .. ... ... ... ... ....

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part 1X,
column (A), ling 27 7 'Yes, complete Schedule |, Parts fand Il ... . .

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part V[, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? if 'Yes, complete
SR e

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20022 f Yes, ' answer fines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If 'No, 'go fo line 2ba

25a Section 501(c)3), 501{c)(®), and 501{e)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? if 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part!. ... ... . . .. . ... ... ..o ...
b Is the crganization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified persen in a pricr year, and
that the transaction has not been reperted on any of the crganization's prior Forms 990 or 990-E27 If 'Yes,' complete
Schedufe L, Partl. ... ... ... . . i i e e e e e e e
26 Did the organization report any amount en Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from of payables tc any current or
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons?
If'Yaes, " complete Schadule L, Part l e e e e

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributer or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlied entity or family member
of any of these persons? If Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part [l .. .

28 Was the organization a parly fo a business transaction with cne of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

Yes | No
20a X
20b
21 b4
22 X
23 X
24a X
24b
24c
244
25a X
25h X
26 X

a A current or former officer, director, irustee, or key employee? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule £, Part!V............o... .. 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,' complete
SCRed e L, Part IV e 28h X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member therecf) was an
officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? if 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part 1V .. ... . . ... ... ... ... . ... 28¢ X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? if 'Yes, ' complefe Schedule M. .. ........... 29 X
3¢ Did the organization recaive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? /f Yes,  complete Schadule M. .. 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissclve and cease operations? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part!. ... ... | 31 X
32 Did the organization sall, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? Jf 'Yas,' complete
Schadule N, Part . 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections
3M.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If Yes, complete Schedule R, Parth. . o . 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,’ complete Scheduie R, Part Il 1il, or IV,
AN P At N, e e 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512137 . ... o o i 35a X
b!f Yes' lo line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled
entity within the meaning of section 512(0Y(13)7 If "Yes, complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. ... ... ... . .. ... ..... .. 35h
36 Section 507(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? /f 'Yes,'complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f 'Yes, ' complete Schedule R, Part VI .. .. ... .. ... ...... 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, fines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complefe Schedule O ... o 38 X
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Form 990 (2017) STIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 5
‘PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line N this Part V. . e e e,

c

1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096, Enter -0- if not applicable............... | 1a
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable............ 1h

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and repartable gaming
(gambling) WinniNgs 10 DIZE WIENE ST L i e e e e e e

2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year coverad by this return. . . . .. 2a

b If 'Yes,' has it filed 2 Form 990-T for this vear? if 'No'fo line 3, provide an explanation in Schedole ... .. .o 3b

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financia! account in a foreign country {(such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account?...... . ...

b if 'Yes,' enter the name of the fereign country; »
See Instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

6 a Does the organization have annual gross receipls that are normally greater than $700,000, and did the crganization
solicit any contributions that were net tax deductible as charitable contributions?. . ... .. .. oL 6a &

b If "Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were
not tax dedUCtila s

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and
services proavided 10 the Payor? e e

g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899
BS TBOUITBUT Lo e 7g

h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a

Form T . L i e e e 7h

13 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enfer:

a Inittation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIl line 12, ... ... . 0oL 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities . .. .. 10h
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or sharehelders.......................................... | 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem.) . ... o 11h
12 a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. |s the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10412
b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . ... .. } 12b‘

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organizaticn must report on Schedule O.
h Enter the amount of reserves the organization is raguired o maintain by the states in

which the arganization is licensed fo issue qualified healthplans .. ... ... . ... .... 13b
c Enter the amount of reserves an hand. . ... ..o 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indeor tanning services during the tax year? . ... ... ... ... . i 14a X
bIf 'Yes,' has i filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If ‘No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule ©............. ... 14b
BAA TEEAQ103L.  08/08/17 Form 920 2017)
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(2017) SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 6

| Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a 'No'response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in
Schedule O, See insiructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line IR this Part Vi . i e e

Section A. Governing Body and Management

For

Ta Enter the number of voling members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. ... .. Ta
If there are material differences in voting rights ameng members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive commitiee or similar committes, explain in Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent. ... .. 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directers, or rustees, or key employees to @ management company or other person?

4 Did the organization make any significant changes fo its governing documents

w
e

5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. ... .......... 5
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders?

-3
E e ST

8 Did the organization contemporanaously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by

the following:
A ThE GOVEITING Oy e e e 8al X
h Each committee with authority fo act on behalf of the governing body?. .. ... o ghl X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached ai the
organization's mailing address? i "Yes, ' provide the names and addresses in Schedule O, ................ R g X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have lecal chapters, branches, or affillates? .. ... . i0a b
b if "Yes," did the crganization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches fo ensure their
aperations are cansistent with the organization's exempl PUIDOSES Y L L . L e 10b
11 & Has the organization provided-a complete copy of this Form 950 to all members of its governing body bafore filingtheform? ... ... ... ... .. ... 11a

b Describe in Schedule C the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12 a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? f 'No, ' gote fine 13, . .. . i,

b Were officers, directors, or trusiees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise
b0 oM S 2, et e e 12b

¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliznce with the policy? If 'Yes, ' describe in
Schedule O how this was done. ... See. Schedule. O

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policyY 7 . .o e
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability dafa, and contempoeranecus substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization's CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official. . . See. Schedule. Q... ... ... ..
b Cther officers or key employees of the organization. .. See . Schedule. O. . .. o 15b] X

if Yes' to line 15z or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assels to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

b If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required tc be filed »  None

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 {or 1024 if applicable), 90, and 990-T (Section 501(¢)(3)s only) avallable
for public inspection. Indicale how you made these available. Check all that apply.

D Own website D Another's website Upon request D Other {expfain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing dacuments, conflict of interest policy, and financial statemants available to
the public during the tax year. See Schedule O

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records; »

JONATHAN KUSEL 4338 MAIN STREET/POB 11 TAYLORSVILLE CA 95983-0011 530-284-1022
BAA TEEADIOGL Q8/08/17 Form $80 (2017
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Form990 2017y STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 7
‘Part VIt Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any ling Inthis Part VIl .. oo D
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within tha
organization's tax year.

* List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
cormpensation, Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.'

* List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, frusiee, or key employes)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Bex 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
arganization and any related organizations,

* List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employess who received mare than $109,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

*® List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or frustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persans in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees: highest compensated
emplovees; and former such persons.

D Cheack this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

)
Paosition (do not check more
Name(é\r?d Title A\E&Brgge thaig ggE‘l %Onxbgfvclgﬁzrgdergon Regc?r)table Re[()fr)tab\e Esgiil)ated
hours directorftrustes) compensation from compensation from amount of other
per e — the organization related arganizations cormpensation
week 15 3] ZH 2| 2518 D T (w-21089-MISC) {(W-2/1099-MISC) from the
St - E Py
Q;ant;da— _g-‘- é g - E;—, & g = organizations
fions = =
wor | B2 |F| B
fine) & %_
_ (b JOHN NICKERSON ~ _ __ _ _____|__ 0 _
" President 0 X 0. 0 0.
_@ CGERRY GRAY _  ______ 0 _|
Secretary 0 X 0. 0. 0.
_® Beth Rose Middleton _______ | _ 0 _]
Director 0 X 0. 0 0
_4_SUZANNE PLOPPER _ _ _ _ ___ | | 0
Director 0 X 0, G 0
_®)_KEN ROBY _ .. Q.
Director 0 X 0. 0 0
_©& MARTHA DAVIS _ | _ 0 |
Treasurer 0 X 0. 0 0
_O TERRY COLLINS | . 0 _|
Director 0 X 0 0 0
_®) GARY NAKAMARA _ __ ________]_| 0
Director 0 X 0. 0 0
_®) Zaheer Tajand | 0 _|
Director 0 X 0. 0 0
O0_LoGaN Mccoy | S0
Vice President ¢ X C. 0 0
OD_Suzie Elkjer _ __ ________ | ¢ _]
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
02 JONATHAN KUSEL | 350_
Executive Direc Y X 115, 848, 0. 0.
(13) -
a4
BAA TEEADIO7L 0B/CBITT Form 980 (2017
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Form 990 (2017) STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 51-1818166 Page 8
| Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continved)

® ()]
Position
(A) A}\;eraga b(do ncwtI check more.thgnthone (D) 3] )]
N d 1t oLIrs 0x, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Esfimated
Bme and ke w?gk officer and a direclorftrustes) cc%g!pensataomtfrom c?rin%egsatiorn f{om amount of other
i = e organization relaied organizations compensation
Gsiany B3N G QT BFa| wndsmMse (W-2/1099-MiSC) from the
o 9. 2 E‘—‘-: st 232 organization
related B Y S8 S| e and related
organiza 1@ = = E=F a organizaiions
-tions | 5] = £ 3
below 5= 81 B
dotted g a3 Z
ling} = %
[l
{i5)
% A ___]
o ]
(18)
as
20)
29
22)
) R
&9 ] —
> 4 __]

ThSub-total..... ... > 115, 848, 0. 0.
¢ Total from continuation sheets fo Part VI, Section A .. .................... > 0. 0. 0.
dTotal (addlines Thand 1€} ... ... ... .. . > 115, 848. 0. 0.

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation

from the organization ™ 1

3 Did the orgznizati on list any farmer officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on fine 1a? If Yes,” complete Scheduls J for such individual .o

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensaﬂon and other compensation from
the organization and related orgamzattons greater than $150,0007 i "Yes,' complete Schedule J for
SUCh VI,

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive cr accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule Jfor such person.. .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .........

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this fable for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the crganization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A B ) ©
Name and business address Description of services Cempensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (ncluding but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization * : i
BAA TEEAGIORL 08/08/17 Form 990 (2017)
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SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY &

51-1818166

5. GifLs, Grants
imi

ions

and Gther §

Gontribut

Form 990 (2017)

far Ainounts |

Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule © contains a response or note to any line in this Part Vil

1 é Federaté'd campélgns Ta '

A
Total revenue

(8) () (%
Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenua under sections
revenug 5h12-514

h Membership dues. ............ h

¢ Fundraising events............ Tc

d Related organizations . ...... .. 1d

e Government grants {contributions). .... | Te

2,483,888,

f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above . .. | 1f

647,192,

g Noncash contributions included in lines 121 3

h Total, Add lines Ta-1f. ...............

-

Program Service Revenue

Business Code }

79,404,

40,525,

7,882,

500,

f All other program service revenus ...

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f. ........... ..... ,

Other Revenue

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest and

other similar amounts). .. .. ... ... ..
4 Income from Investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds. .
5 Rovallles ... e

317.

317,

(i} Real (i) Personal

6 a Gross rents

b Less: rental expenses

¢ Rental income or (lossy . . .

d Net renfal income or {oss). ............

{0 Securities (il Other

7 a Gross amount from sales of

assats other than inventory

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses

¢ Gainor {loss)........

d Net gain or {Joss}

8a Gross income from fundraising events
(net including. 3
of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18............. ... a

b Less: directexpenses..............

¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events. .. ... ..

9a Gross income from gaming activities.
See Part IV, ling 19

b Less: direct expenses
¢ Net income or {(oss) from gaming activities. . ..... .. ..

10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
ard allowances.................... . a

b Less: cost of goods sold. ......... .. b

¢ Net income or {Joss) from sales of inventory ., .. .......

Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

\d

3,269,808,

128,728

0.

BAA
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m 990 (2017)

SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY &

51-1818166

Page 10

X | Statement of Functional Expenses

”Sectron 501(c)(3) and 501 (c)i4) organizations must complete alf columns. All other organizations must complete cofumn (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any ling in this Part [X

Do not include amounts reported on lines

8b,

7b, 8b, 8b, and 10h of Part VIIL

(A)
Total expenses

(B

Program service

expenses

© o)
Fundraising
expenses

Management and
general expenses

1

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

12
20
21
22

23
24

Grants and other assistance to domestic
organizations and domestic governments.
SeePart IV, ine 21, ... ... .. ... ........

Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part iV, line 22, ............

Grants and other assistance to foreign

crganizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Pait IV, lines 15 and 16.
Benefits paid to or for members........... ..

Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees

Compensation not included above, to
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(N(1)) and persons described

in section 48580 BEY . ... o

Other salaries and wages .............. ...

Pension plan accruals and contributions
{include section 401(K) and 403()
employer contributions)

Other employee benefits ... .. ..
Payrolltaxes. ... .o o oo i
Fees for services {non-employees):

e Professional fundraising services. See Part [V, line 17, ...
f Investment management fees.. .............

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of fine 25, column
(A) amount, list fine 11g expenses on Scheduie 0.y .. ..

Advertising and promotion............... ...
Office eXPENSas . ..o v e e een
Information technology. ....... ... L.
Royalties

Payments of travel or entertainment
expenses for any federal, state, or local
publicofficials. ........... ... ... ... .
Conferences, conventions, and meetings. .. ..
Interest. ... .. ..

Paymenis to afffliates. ........... . e
Depreciation, depleticn, and amortization .. ..

g3 = o S

Other expenses. ltemize expenses not
covered above {List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24¢ amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, fist line 24e
gxpenses on Schedule O ... .. oL

115,848.

97,

892, 17,956.

0

g 0

503,247.

432,

589, 70,658,

30,267,

26,

696. 3,571.

86,973,

73,

107. 13,266.

54,678,

48,

193, 6,485,

5,530.

5,230.

592.

36,592, 35,
15,501, 2,205. 13,316,
725. 725.

28.138. 20,518, 7,550

38, 939. 36,347, 2,592

13, 926. 18, 940. 986.
8,120, 5. 662. 2,458,
5,235 11. 5,224,

a CONTRACTCRS BIOMASS PROJ 832,513, 632,513,
b SUB CONTRACTORS-QTHER 141,176, 141,176,
¢ PARTNER EXPENSE 18,012. 18,012,
d PROGRAM SUPPLIES 13,223, 13,223,
e All other expenses. .. ...................... 14,448, 14,448
25 Tolal functional expensas, Add |ines 1 through 24e . . . . 1,969,111. 1,819,479. 149,632, 0.

26

Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the organization reported in column (B)

joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

Check here » | ] Tf folfowing

SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). oo

BAA
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Form980 (2017) STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 11
P3 = Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line Inthis Part X ... i D
A ®
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash — non-interest-bearing ... .o e 1
2 Savings and tempeorary cashinvestments. .. ... ..o 220,188, 2 230,862,
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. . ... 3
4 Accounts receivable, net 142 265 3 249 223
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part |l of Schedule E ........................................................
6 loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(H (1)), persons described in section 4258(c)(3}(B)}, and contributing :
employers and sponsoring crganizations of section 501(c)(®) voluntary employses'
beneficiary organizations (see instructions), Complete Part |l of Schedule L. ... .. 6
&1 7 Notesandloans receivable, net. ..o o 7
ﬁ- 8 Invenlores for Sale Of USB . . i i i e 8
<L | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges. .. ... o o e 9
1¢a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis,
Complete Part VI of Schedule D....... ... ... ..., 10a
b Less: accumulated depreciation.......... ... ..., 1Gb 75,010. 106,223.| 10c 1,475,985,
11 investments — publicly traded securities. ... ..o o 11
12 Investments ~ other securities. See Part IV, line 11.... ... ... . o il 12
13 Investments -- program-related. See Part [V, line 11L.... .. ... ... .. 13
14 Intangible @ssels. . . 14
15 Otherassets. See Part IV, line 11 ... 1,118 1.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 {mustegqual line 34). ... .. ................. 471,348 |16 1,956,071,
17 Accounts pavable and accrued exXpanses, .. .o i e 124,704,117 208,008,
18 Gramts payable . ..o e 18
18 Deferred revenue. ... . o 19 82,114,
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities. .. ... ...
g. 21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D............
£ | 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
a key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
:g Complete Part Il of Schedule L. ... o
1 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable o unrelated third parties. ................
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties....................
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax,fayabIes to related third pariies,
and other lizabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. ., 20,834.; 25 49,354
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25, ... .o o e 145,538
o Organizations thaf follow SFAS 117 (ASC 9358), check here » and complete =
8 lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
E 27 Unrestricled netassets. ..o 318,698.| 27 1,598,555,
g 28 Temporarily restricted netassels . ... 7,1311.} 28 17, 640.
= | 29 Permanently restricted netassets ...
g Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » D
L:_"V and complete lines 30 through 34.
; 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... oL
3{ 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund. ..................
“:'E 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or otherfunds, ............
:16 33 Totalnetassetsorfund balances. ... .o oo 325,810.]33 1,616,595
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. ... o 471,348,134 1,956,071.
BAA Form 990 (2017)
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Form990 2017y STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & $1-1818166 Page 12
' 2 Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check If Schedule O containg a response ornote toany lineinthisPart X!, .. ..o s, R I R r D
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VI, column (&), ime 12 ..o e 1 3,269, 808.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), INe 25) . ... oo 2 1,969,111,
3 Revenue less expenses. Sublract fine 2 from line 1. . o 3 1,300,697.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, calumn (A0, ... v L. 4 325, 810.
5 Nef unrealized gains (Josses) on IMVeSIMENES. L. o 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities, ... o o 6
7 INVESImIEr B aMS S . L 7
B Prior pericd adjustments . .o e 8 ~9,512
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explainin Schedule O) .. ... o o 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
co[urpn (S T I O U 10 1,616,595,

| Financial Statements and Reporiing

Check if Schedule O contains a respoense or note to any line in this Part X1

1  Accounting method used to prepare the Form S90: DCaSh EAccrual D Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' explain
in Schedule O

If *Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on 2
ﬂarate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Sepa;ate basis DConsolldaLed basis D Both consclidated and separate basis

if Yes,' check a box below fo indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
hasis, consolidaied basis, or both:

D Separate basis .Consolidated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis

¢ If "'Yes' tc line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assurnes responsibility for overaght of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountani?. .

If the organization changed either iis oversight process or selection process during the tax year, expfam

in Schedule O.
3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single
Audit Act and OB CIrcUlar A-T 33 7 L e 3al X
b if Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the regquired audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. .. ..o . . o i 3b] X
BAA _ Form 990 (2017)

TEEADTT2L 08/0BN7T

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
61



Public Charity Status and Public Support |_oua o, 1513 000
SCHEDULE A y PP 201 7
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete if the organization is a section 5G1{c)3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. .

» Atitach to Form 920 or Form 290-EZ,
Depariment of the Treasury

Itomal Fovems Senos > Go to www.irs.gov/Form390 for instructions and the latest information.
Name ofthe organization  STRRRA TNSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & Employar identification number
ENVIRONMENT 91-1818164%

: 4 Reason for Public Charity Status (All crganizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check anly one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section T70(b)XT)(AXI).

2 A school described in section 170(b)(T)}A)(D). (Attach Schedule E {Form 990 or 990-E7).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170¢h)(1)(A)Gii).

4 A medical research organization opsrated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)1)(A)ii). Enter the hospital's
name, cfty, and state:

3 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)iv). (Complete Part 11.}

6 A federal, stale, or local government or governmental unit described in section T70(b)(1)(A}V).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described
in section 170(b)}1)(A)VI). (Complete Part i1.)

8 D A community trust described in section 170(bXT){A)vi). (Complete Part 1)

9 D An agricuttural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant cellege
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculiure (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10

An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) om businesses acquired by the organization after
June 30, 1975, See section 509(a)2). (Complete Part 1il.)

11 H An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 309(aX4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or fo carry out the purposes of one
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 50(a)(Z). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
fines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organizaticn and complete fines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a D Type L. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlied by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported
organization(s) the power fo regularly appoint or elect a majerity of the directors or trustess of the supporting organization. You must
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [l Type [I. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization{s). You
must complete Part [V, Sections A and C.

c D Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type [ll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported erganization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

¢ D Check this box if the organization received a writien determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type I, Type 1l functionally
integrated, or Type |l non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of sUpporied orgamizations . o I:'

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv} is the ) Amount of monetary (vD) Amount of other
(described on fines 1-10 organization [isted support {see instructions) support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) in your geverning

document?
Yes No

(A)

(B}

©

)]

)

TOtaI el T T e o ot T ] N

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Sc”l'le_d__ulg A Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 2
Partil; Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(bY1){A)(iv) and 170(b)(1 WA

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part 11 if the
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please compiete Part 111}

Section A. Public Support

Calend fiscal
b yoar (or fiscal year (2) 2013 (52014 © 2015 () 2016 (e) 2017 0 Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees recaived. (Do not
include any unuseal grants. ... .. ..

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
elther paid to or expended
onitsbehaft.................

3 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
arganization without charge. . ..

4 Toftal. Add lines 1 through 3. ..

5 The portion of total
contributions by each person
{other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f). ..

6 Public support, Subtract line 5
fromlined. . .................

Section B. Total Suppott

Calend fiscal
b:g?;sn;rgyiena)r'(_or iscal year () 2013 () 2014 (© 2015 @) 2076 (e) 2017 5 Total

7 Amounts fromlined..........

8 Gross incame from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from
Similar SOUrCes, .. ..o vvuu

g Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carrfedon ... .. ... ...,

10 Other income. Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI, ... o

11 Total suppert. Add lines 7
through 10, ... oot

12 Gross receipts from related activities, ete, (see instructions). 15 \
13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here. ... ... o T > D
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2017 (line &, column () divided by fine 17, column . ... ... L. 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part 1, line 14, . o 15 %

16a 33-1/3% support test—2017. |7 the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this hox
and stop here. The crganization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. .. ... . o e e

b 33-1/3% support test—2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 162, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2017, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 168b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how
ihe organization meefis the facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances {est—2016, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 18a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. .. ........ ...
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions »

Y v v
I I

BAA - Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Sch duIe A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
i4 Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

SIERRA TINSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY &

91-1818166

Page 3

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part |, If the organization
fails to gualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)

Se

ction A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year haginning in) ™

1

Gifts, grants, contrlbutlons
and mzmbership fees

received. (Do not include
any 'unusual grants.")

Gross receipts from admissions,

merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization's
fax-exempt purpose. . .
Gross receipts from actlvmes
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 .

4 Tax revenues levied for the

8

organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended an
its behalf, e
The value of setv;ces or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . ..

Total. Add lines 1 through 5., ..
a Amounts included on linas 1,

2, and 3 received from

disqualified persons...........

b Amounts included on lines 2
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of 35,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
fortheyear..................

¢ Add lIines 7a and 7h. .

Public support. (Subtract liry
7¢ from line 6.). .

(2) 2013

{b) 2014

(c)2015

(d) 2016

(e) 2017

() Total

388,030.

599,071,

850,538.

1,171,056,

3,269,491,

6,278,186.

0.

388,030,

5585,071.

§50,538.

1,173,056,

3,269,491,

6,278,186,

0.

Se

ction B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) »

9
10

11

12

13

14

Amounts fromlineg..........

a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similarsourcas. . ........... ...

b Unrelaied business taxable
income (less seclion 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975, ..

c Add lines 10aand 10h........
et income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
reqularly carrisd on. .. .. .. ... . ...
Other income. Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part V. ..o

Total support. (Add lines 9,
10c, 11, and 12.) .. .

First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or flfth lax year as a section 501{c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here

(a) 2013

(b) 2014

(c) 2015

(d) 2016

(e) 2017

(H) Total

388,030.

598,071,

850,538,

1,171,056,

3,269,491,

6,278,186,

60.

31.

0.

152,

317.

670.

60.

31.

70

. 192.

317.

570.

-1,777.

-355.

-5,800.

-2,028.

-9,960.

0.

386,313,

588,747,

844,808.

1,169,220.

3,265,808.

6,268,896,

Section C. Computation of Public Suppori Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2017 (line &, column () divided by ling 13, column ()
16 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part 11, line 15

......... 15

........................................... 16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

17
18

20 Private foundation. If the crganization did not check a box online 14, 19a, or 18b, check this box and see instructions

Investment income percentage for 2017 (iine 10¢, column () divided by line 13, column (D)}
Invesiment income percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part 11, line 17

line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization quahﬂes as a publicly supported orgamzatlon > H

......... 17

....................................... 18

19a 33-1/3% support tests—2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organizaticn gualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33-1/3% support tesis—2016, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is mare than 33-1/3%, and

BAA
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Schedule A (Form 930 or 920-E7) 2017 SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 4
5 Vi Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box inline 12 on Part |, If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections

A and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. [f you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V)

Section A, All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing documents?
{f 'No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe
the designation. If historic and continuing reiationship, explain,

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section
509(a)(1y or ()7 If Yes,' explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supperted organization was
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2.

3a Did the organization have a supperted organization deseribed in section 501(c){4), (5), or (6)7 If 'Yes, answer (b)
and {c) below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization gualified under section 501{c}(4}, (3), 0|"(6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(2)(2)7 If 'Yes,' describe in Part Vi when and how the organization
made the determination.

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(Q(@)(B)
purposes? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what conirols the organization put in place to ensure such use.

4a Was any supported crganization not organized in the United States {'foreign supported organizationy? If ‘Yes' and
if you checked 12a or 12bin Part I, answer (b) and () below.

b Did the organization have ultimate contrel and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supported
organization? /f 'Yes,' describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite baing controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

¢ Did the crganization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under
sactions B501(e)(3) and 502(a)(1) or (237 If 'Yes,' explain in Part Vi what confrols the organization used to ensure that
all support fo the foreign supporied organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)2)(B) purposes.

5a Did the crganization add, substifute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes,' answer (b)
and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detall in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported
organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action; (i) the authority under the
organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (v} how the action was accomplished (such as by
amendment to the organizing docurmernt).

b Type lor Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in the
organization's organizing document?

¢ Substitutions only, Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than () its supported organizations, (i} individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of
the filing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,' provide detfaif in Part VL.

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 495B(c)(3)(Cy), a family member of a substantial contributer, or a 35% controlled entily with
regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes, ' complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 890-E7).

8 Did the organization make a lpan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77 If 'Yes,'
complete Part | of Schedule [ (Form 990 or 990-E2).

9a Was the crganization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons
as defined in section 4946 {other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 508@)(1) or (207
If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI.

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which the
supporting organization had an interest? /f 'Yes,' provide detail in Part Vi,

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a} have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? if 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business heldings rules of section 49432 because of section 4943(f) (regarding
certain Type 1l supporting organizations, and all Type Il nen-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If Yes,’
answer 100 below.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determine
whether the organizalion had excess business hoidings.} 1ch

BAA TEEAQ4DAL  DB/10/17 Schedule A (Form 920 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule A Form 990 or 990-E2) 2017 SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 81-18181566 Page 5
Part1vi] Supporting Organizations (continued)

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the

governing body of a supported organization? Ma
b A family member of a persen described in (&) above? b
¢ A 35% controlied entity of 2 person described in (a) or (b above? if 'Yes'to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI, 1ic

Section B. Type [ Supporting Organizations

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appeint
or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trusiees at all times during the tax year? If 'No,’ dascribe in
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities.
if the organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or reriove
directors or trustees were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any,
applied to such powers during the tax year,

2 Did the organization cperate for the benefit of any supponted organization other than the supported organization(s)
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how providing such
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controfied the
supporting organization.

Section C. Type ll Suppotting Organizations

1 Were a majority of ths organization's directors or frustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization's supperted organization(s)? If ‘No, ' describe in Part VI how controf or management of the
supporting organization was vesited in the same persons that controfled or managed fhe supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type [l Supperting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported crganizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, () a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of nofification, and (i) copies of the
organization's governing docurnents in effect on the date of notification, o the extent not previously provided?

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trusiees either () appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If 'No, ' explain in Part VI how
the organization maintainad a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a significant
voice In the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If 'Yes,' describe in Part Vi the role the organization's supported organizations played
in this regard.

Section E. Type lli Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next fo the method that the organization used to satisfy the Infegral Part Test during the year (see instructions),
a D The organization satisfied the Aclivities Test. Complete fine 2 below.
3] D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Compleie line 3 below.

[ D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part Vi how you supported a government enfity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b} below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supporied organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes,' then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constifuted
substantially all of its activities,

b Did the activities described in (g) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more of
the organization's supported organization(s) wouid have been engaged in? ¥ 'Yes, explain in Part VI the reasons for
the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities but for the
organization’s involverment.

3 Parent of Suppoited Organizations. Answer (a) arid (b) befow.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees of
each of the supporied organizations? Provide detaifs in Part VI.

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of its
supported organizations? /f Yes,' describe in Part VI the rofe piayed by the organizalion in this regard.
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2017 STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818156 Page 6
{Part V& Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(2)3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a gualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part V), See
instructions. All other Type I} non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income (&) Prior Year ® %E)'truggtal\;ear

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other grass income (see instructions)
Add lings 1 through 3,
Depreciation and depletion

(SRR I S I I C

hun bW =

Fortion of cperating expenses paid or Incurred for production or collection of gross
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for
production of income (see instructions)

7 Other expenses (see instructions)
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4).

7 — Mini : (B) Current Year
Section B — Minimum Asset Amount (&) Prior Year @ptional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short
tax year or assets held for part of year):

a Average manthly value of securities

b Average monthly cash balances

¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets
d Tetal (add lines 1a, 16, and 1¢)

e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acqguisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets {subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035. &
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 HMinimurn Asset Amount {add line 7 to line &) 8
Section C — Distributable Amount Current Year
T Adjusted net income for prior year {from Section A, line 8, Column A} 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1. . 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, ling 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emargency
temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type !l supporting crganization
(see instructions).
BAA Schedule A (Form 290 or 930-EZ) 2017
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Schadule A (Foym 990 or 990-E2) 2017 SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-18181656 Page 7
/-2 Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D — Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exarmpt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purpeses of supported organizations,
in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exemipt purposes of supported erganizations
Ameunts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts {prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI), See insiructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through &.

O~ b

Distributions to atientive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details
in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line &6
10 Line 8 amount divided by ling 9 amount

. o . . , 0 (i) (i)
Section E — Ristribution Allocations (see instructions) _ Excess Underdistributions Distributable
Distributions Pre-2017 Amount for 2017

1 Disiributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2017 (reasonable
cause required — explain in Part V1). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, fo 2017

bFrom2013...............
CFRrom204...............

dFrom2015. ... ...........
eFrom2016...............

{ Total of lines 3a through &

q Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h Applied to 2017 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2012 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 31.

4 Distributions for 2017 from Section D,
ling 7:
a Applied to underdistributicns of prior years
b Applied to 2017 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract iines 4a and 4b from 4.
5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2017, if any.

Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than
zero, explain in Part VI, See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2017, Subtract lines 3h and 4h
from fine 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI, See
instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2018, Add lines 3j and 4¢.
8 Breakdown of line 7:

4 Excess from2013......

b Excess from 2014 ... ...

C Excess from 2015 ... ...

d Excess from 2016... ...

e Excess from 2017.... ...
BAA Schedule A (Fortm 290 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedu!eA(Form 990 or 900-EZ) 2077 STRRRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-181816¢6 Page 8
g +1Supplemental Information, Provide the explanatmns required by Part 11, line 10; Part [, ling 173 or 7b Partlll line 12 Part 1V,

: Sec’%onA fines 1, 2. 30, 3¢, &b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9, 91, Gc, 113, 11b, 2nd 116, Part 1V, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section'C, ling 1;
Part IV, Section D EmesZandE Part W SectlonE lines Tc Za 2, Sa and 3b PartV, me1 PartV Sect\on B, Ilne'le Partv
Section D, InesS 6, and §; and Part V, SectlonE lines 2, 5 and 6. Also complete this partfor any additiona! information.
(See instructions. )

BAA TEEAQADSL  08/10/17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule B | OMB No. 1545-0047

ooy O Schedule of Contributors 2017

Department of the Treasury = Attach to Form 990, Form 980-EZ, or Fortm 990-PF.

Internal Revenue Servige » Goto www.irs.gov/FoerQO far the latest information.

MName of the organization STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COD‘MUNITY & Emplayer identification number
ENVIRONMENT 91-1818166

Organization type {check one):

Filers of; Section:

Form 980 or 990-EZ 501(c 3 ) (enter number) organization

D 4247(2)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
D 527 pclitical organization

Form 990-PF [ ]501(c)3) exempt private foundation
D 4947 (2)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation
[ ]501(0)@) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Spacial Rule.

Note. Only a section 501(c)(7), (&), or (10} crganizaticn can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions tetaling $5,000 or more {in meney or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parls | and 1. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

D For an organization described in section 301(c)}(3) filing Form 930 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1/3% support test of the regulations
under sections 509(2)(1) and 170)(13(AX(vD), that checked Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ), Part I, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that
received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of {T) $5,000 or (2) 2% of the amount on ()
Form 290, Part VIII, ting Th; or (i) Form 930-EZ, iine 1. Complete Parts [ and {l.

D For an organization described in section 501(c3(7), (8}, or (13} filing Form 590 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor,
during the vear, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, 1I, and I1i.

D For an organization described in section 501(c){7}, (8), or (10} fifing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor,
during the year, contributions exclusivaly for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but ne such contributions totaled more than
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the tolal contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious,
charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unfess the General Rule applies 1o this organization becaus
it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the vear ... . .. »

Caution, An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule andfor the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B {(Form 930, 990-EZ, or
990-PF), but it must answer 'No' on Part [V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form $90-EZ or on its Form 990-PF,
Part 1, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 980-EZ, or 390-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

TEEAD70TL  08/0917
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Schedule B (Ferm 880, SSC0-EZ, or $90-PF) (2017) Page 1 of 1 ofPartl
Narne of organization Employer identification number
STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 81-1818166

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate coples of Part | if additicnal space is needed.

(@) {b) (c) (d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
1 s Person
S Payroll D
11400 INDEPENDENCE AVE SW ________ 8 ____ 474,584 Noncash [ ]
WASHINGTON DC, DC 20250 o Shirbutions.)
() (b (c} (d
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
2 |COUNTY OF PLUMAS Person
I Payrall I:I
198 ANDYS WAY _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ ___ P __ 387,112.| Noncash []
C lete Part I f
QUINCY, CA 85971 r('no%?apsﬁ gOﬂ?l’libuti(?lflS.)
(a) (b (©) ()
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
3 |CA ENERGY COMMISSION Person
=~ Payroll D
1516 9TH ST, 1ST FLOOR _ _ _ _ _ _ _________°___1,623,172.| Noncash []
Complete Part ! for
_S]_{QR;AME_I\T_TQ — (_:% _9§ ‘%l.fl —————————————————————— gon?apsﬁ gom?rrl butingB.}
b % o
Nu%e'll)ber Name, addre(sg, and ZIP + 4 Tgt)al Type of c(m?ltribution
coniributions
4 _ |DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION Person
. Payroll D
18¢1 K ST _ _ _ ¢ 246,994.| Noncash [
Complete Part Il f
|SACRAMENTO, CA 95811 gonrgapsh contributigrrws.)
(@) {b) © (d
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of conttibution
contributions
5__ |NORTHERN SIERRA Pp-com initiative _ Person
e Payroll [ ]
1000 BROADWAY STE 480 . "S_____ 191,500.| Noncash |[]
C lete Part 1| 1
(ORKLAND , CA 94607 _ ___ _____ _____ | Elo%?&lpsﬁ Eon?rributégrtus.)
{a) ) © 1C)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
5 NATIONAL FOREST FOQUNDATION Person
T T Payroll D
(3079 HARRISON AVE #18 ____________ ___F_____ 101,500.| Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part I} f
LAKE TRHOE, CAS61SO._ Complete Partfor
BAA TEEAD7O2L  08/09/17 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds

7



Schadule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

Page to

1

1 of Partll

Mame of organization

Employer identification number

SIERRA TINSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166
#2| Noncash Property (ses instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.
L (1) ) {© (d)
Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received

(See instructions.)

{a) No.
from
Part |

)

©
FMV (or estimate)}
{See instructions.)

(d)
Date received

{a) No.
from
Part!

(b

©
FMV (or estimate)
{See instructions.)

)
Date received

(a) No.
from
Partl

(c)
FMV {or estimate)
(See instructions.)

(d) .
Date received

__________________________________________ $___.__._..____._._.A;m________
(2) No. L (b © {d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part | (See instructions.)
R U
() Ne. L (b ] (c} {d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV {or estimate) Date received
Part| (See instructions.)
__________________________________________ 5

BAA

Schedule B (Form 990, 930-EZ, or 390-PF) (2017)
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017} Page 1 W 1  of Partili
Name of organization Employer identification number
SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 81-181i81le6

& Exclusively religious, charitable, etc,, contributions to organizations described in section 501(¢X7), (8),
or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (2) through (¢) and

the following line entry. For organizations completing Part 111, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, efc.,
contributions of $71,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) .............
Use duplicate copies of Part 1l if additional space is nesded.

(@ - © R )N
No. from Purpose of gift Use of gift Description of how gift is held
Part |
\w/A ol ___.
()
Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to {ransferee
{a) B @ (D
No. from Purpose of gift Use of gift Description of how gift is held
Part|
&
Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 ‘ Relationship of transfercr to transferea
@ ® © W
No. frem Purpase of gift Use of gift Description of how gift is held
Partl
e
Transfer of gift
Transieree's name, address, and ZIP +4 Relationship of {ransferor to transferee
(a) 1) (e L. @
No. from Purpose of gift Use of gift Description of how gift is hald
Part
=
Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

BAA Schedule B (Form 920, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements oM Mo, 15459947
{Form 990) » Complete if the organization answered "Yes' on Form 930, 201 7
PartlV, line 6,7, §, 9,10, 11a, 11h, 11¢, 11d, T1e, 11, 12a, or 12b.
» Atfach to Form 999,
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form930 for instructions and the latest information.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service pe

Name of the organization Empioysar igentification number
SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY &
ENVIRONMENT 91-1818166

.| Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Simtlar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 9390, Part 1V, line 6.

(@) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other actounts

1 Total numberatend of year................
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year). .. .. ..
3 Aggregate value of grants from {duringyear). .. ... . ...
4
5

Aggregate value atend ofyear .......... ...

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . .. ... .. o oL DYes D No

& Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the bensfit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impearmissible private benefl . . D Yes D No
1] Conservation Easements. |
Complete if the organization answered Yes' on Form 950, Part [V, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).

Preservation of land for public use {e.qg., recraation or education) HPreservatlon of a historically impoitant land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d i the organization held a qualified conservation confribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Heid at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservalion easements . ... .. e 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements. .. .. ... o 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in ). ... ......... 2¢
d Number of conservation easements inciuded in (¢) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic
structure listed In the National Register . . ... ... 0 i 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, refeased, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
fax year »

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handiing of violations,

and enforcemeant of the conservation easements K RCIdST. . o o Yes D No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of viclations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[ .3

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of vielations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
-3

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the reguirements of section 170(h4)BXDH

and 5ection 1700MEBIIDT. . ..o v e ottt e [ Yes []No

9 InPart XllI, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expanse statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the fext of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, lins 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenus statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part X1, the text of the footnote fo its financial statements that describes these items.

b if the organization elected, as parmitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

() Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI lime 1. .. o ]
(i Assets included in Form 880, Part X, oo o >3

2 i the organization received or held works of art, hislorical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, e L o e -3
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X ..o >3
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Nolice, see the Instructions for Form 290, TEEAZ30IL 1011417 Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2017  STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & §1-1818166 Page 2
Il Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the crganization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its coilection
items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly regearch Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Erofgﬁla description of the organization's collections and explain how thay further the organization's exempt purpose in
ar .

5 During the year, did the organization sclicit or receive donations of art, historical lreasures, or other similar assets D
Yes

DNO

- Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 99¢, Part IV,
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 980G, Part X, line 21,

b If Yes,' explam the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

Amount
€ Beginning Balance. ..o vve v e AT 1c¢
d Additions during the year. . . .o oo 1d
e Distributions during the year. ... . o le
fENdINg Dalance o e 1f
2 a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? ... .. D Yes B No
b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part X1, ... . oo

- Endowment Funds. Cornplete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part [V, line 10,
{a) Current year (b) Prior year () Two years back (d) Three years back {e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance. .. ...
b Contributions. .................

¢ Net investment earnings, gains,
and JOSSes. ... i

d Grants or scholarships....... ..

e Other expendltures for facilities
and programs. .

f Administrative expenses .......

g End of year balance ...........
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance {line 1g, column (a)) hald as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment » %

b Permanent endowment *» %

¢ Temporarily restricted endowment » %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possassion of the organization that are held and administered for the

arganization by: Yes No
() Unrelaled Organ Zali oS, L e e 3a(i}
(it} re[ated organizations .................................................................................... 3a(ii)

3b

.? Land, Bui[dings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organizaticn answered "Yes' on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) basis {other) depreciation

Taland......oo 205,818. | 205,818,
bBuldings ... 1,291,572, 38,701. 1,252,871,

c Leasehold improvements. ... ... ... oo
dEquipment....oooo 42,287, 26,446, 15,841.
e OthEr 11,318. 9,863. 1,455,
Total, Add lines 1a through le. (Column () must equal Form 930, Part X, column (B), line 10¢.). .............. ...... > 1,475,985.
BAA Schedule D Form 990) 2017
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?Che§U|ED(FOVm 990) 2017 STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 91-1818166 Page 3

4 Investments — Other Securities.

N/A
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 99C, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or catagory (including name of security)

{b) Book value

{c) Methed of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives. ......... .. o o ol

(2) Closely-held equity interests. . .......................

(3) Other

1] Investments — Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered

Yes' on Form 990,

N/B
Part [V, ling 11¢. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment

() Book value

{c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

&

)

@

a9

Total ¢Colurnn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X_column (B) line 13). . ™

=] Other Assets.

, N/A
Complete if the organization answered Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{a) Description

(1) Book value

M

@

@

@

)

®)

7

&

€)]

a0

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column B} line 15.). ... ... ... .o oenn. .. P >

Other Liabilities.

Compiete if the organization answered Yes' on Form 890, Part IV, line 11¢ or 11f, Sea Form 993, Part X, line 25

(a) Description of liability (b} Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
@) Accured wages 30,518
@) Lake Almancr fund 17,640.]
%) Payroll liabilities 1,186
5)
(&)
)]
)]
©)
(0
an
Total. (Column () must equal Form 390, Fart X, column (B) line 25.) . . . .. > 49,354,

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIHl, provide the text of the fostnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liahility for uncertain
iax posifions undsr FIN 48 (ASC 740}, Check here if the fext of the footnote has been provided in Part X3II

BAA

TEEA3303L 081017
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Schedule b (Form 990) 2017  SIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & 891-18181¢66 Page 4
Part X1 | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return,
Complete if the crganization answered "Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements. ..................... ... . 3,915,513,
2 Amounts included on line T but not on Form 990, Part VI, line 12;

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments. ........ ... oo 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities. ... ... ... 2h 645,705

c Recoveries of prior year grants. .. ... ... 2¢

d Other (Cescribe in Part X1 .o e 24d

e Add lines Za through 2d. ..o . e e 645, 705.
3 Subfractline 2e from liNe T. ..o 3,269,808.
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 830, Part VI, line 70 .............. da

b Cther Rescribe in Part XU . ..o e 4hb

cAdd lines da and b ..o
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 890, Part !, line 12.). ... ... . ... ... ... ...... 3,269,808,

4 Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 890, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. .. ... . . o 2,614,816,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 290, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities. .. ... oo 2a 645,705

b Prior year adjusimentS. ..o o e 2h

C OBl 08B L L e 2¢

d Gther Describe in Part XHL) ..o 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. ..o 645,705,
3 Sublractline 2e from liNe T. . o e 1,969,111,

4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 920, Part VIl line 7b.. ......... .. .. 4a
b Other Describe in Part X1 . ... 4b
cAdd lines da and b .o

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must eqgual Form 990, Part |, line 18.) .. ... .. ... i i,

1,969,111,

w

1 XiHH Supplemental Information.

Provide the desciiptions reguired for Part {l, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part ll1, lines 1a and 4; Part 1V, lines 1b and 2by; Part v,

line 4; Part X, ling 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b and Part X, Ilnes 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to prowde any addwtlonal information.

BAA
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | oM Mo 1545.0047

(Form 990 or 930-EZ) Complete to provide information for respenses to specific questions on
Form 920 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
» Attach to Form 990 or @90-EZ.

Department of the Treasury > Go to www.irs.gow/Form990 for the latest information.

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization STIERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & Employer identific.
ENVIRONMENT 91-1818166

Form 990, Part |, Line 1 - Organization Mission or Significant Activities

The Sierrz Institute works to bulld thriving rural ccmmunities while promoting
resilient and productive forests that are valued for the full suite of services they
provide. The Imstitute strives to promote sccial, environmental, and econcmic
approaches that are sustainable from human ané ecological perspectives. Specific
zreas of work include sccial and environmental research, facilitation and capacity
building of rural communities and collaborative groups, and education ané policy
development at state and federal levels.

Form 990, Part lil, Line T - Organization Mission

The Sierra Institute works to build thriving rural communities while promoting
resilient and productive forests that are valued for the full suite of services they
precvide. The Institute strives to promote social, environmental, and economic
arproaches that are sustainable from human and ecological perspectives. Specific
areas of work include social and environmental research, facilitation and capacity
buildi;g of rural communities and collaborative groups, and educaticn and policy
development at state and federal levels.

Form 990, Part lll, Line 4d - Other Program Services Description

Developing Young Stewards: Sierra Institute tekes a three prong approach to
developing stewardship ethic among local and urban youth including recreation,
environmental education, and carser development. One example is: P-Crew is a mix
of rural and urban high schecol students who participate in a five week restoration
trips in the Feather River Watershed during the summer. &8I also continues to run
its Greenville outdcoor Adventure leadership program, which takes local students out

on recreational outdoor trips.

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. TEE&A4901L  08/08/17 Schedule O Form 990 or 950-E2) (2017)
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Schedule © (Form 920 or 990-EZ) (2017) Page 2

Namme of the organization STERRA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY & Employer identification number
ENVIRONMENT 91-1818166

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11b - Form 990 Review Process

Preliminary tax return is reviewed by a director and Executive Director before
filing.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Explanation of Monitoring and Enforcement of Conflicts

Any conflicts of interest must be reported to a director.

Form 930, Part Vi, Line 15a - Compensation Review & Approval Process - CEO & Top Management
Discussed during the normal course of conducting business. Board reviews and
approves executive directors salary annually. Executive dirsctor recelved a 5%
increase in salary in January of 2016

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15b - Compensation Review & Approval Process - Officers & Key Employees
Office is very small so that compensation review for other employees is done by the
executive directof with the approval of the board through the budget and hiring
process.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Other Organization Documents Publicly Available

Documents, forms, and statements available upon reguest.

BAA Schedule © Formn 930 or 990-E2) (2017)
TEEA4902L  08/09/17
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10625262

_ ‘EalDf?ngED FILED
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF " @ Jfice of the Secretary of State

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION JAN 8 1 2005

The undersigned certify that:

1. They are the president and the secretary, respectively, of Forest Commumty .
Research a California corporation.

2 Atticle | of the Articles of lncorporatlon of this corporation is amended to read as
. follows: .

- The name of this corporation is Slerra lnstxtute for Community and
’ Envnronment

!

3., The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by
the board of directors.

4. The corporation has no members. ey

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that
the matters set forth in this certlf' cate are true and correct of our own knowledge.

DATE: /- 25-05
nathan Kus

¢ na sel, Bresident T
‘]':;' ‘ 1;: | \

Ken Roby, Secretary l

Sierra Institute for Community and Environment; North Fork Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
81



2@589325 

ZNDORESELD
FILED |

| in the office of the Secretary of Statp
' ‘ 9% the State of Galifnrni

0CT 2 74997
TGl Nywes

BILL JOHER, Seafebiry of Bfaie
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION :

I

The name of this corporation is Forest Community Research.
- II

A. This corporation is & nonproflt PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION and is not
organized for the private gain of any person. It is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit

Corporation Law for public purpose.

B. The specific purpose of this corporation is to advance education and science.

111
The name and address inthe. State of California of this corporatlon s initial agent for service of .

process is:

Ji onathan Kusel

1657 Diamond Mountain Road

Greenville, CA. 95947 : _
IV

A. This corporation is orgamzed and operated exclusively for public purposes within the meaning
of Section 501(c)(3), Internal Revenue Code.

B. No substantial part of the activities of tms corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, . -
or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate or '
intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing or distribution of statements) on

behalf of any candidate for public office.

The property of this corporation is irrevocably dedicated to public benefit purposes and no part of
the net income or assets of this corporation shall ever inure to the benefit of any director, officer or
member thereof or to the benefit of any private person. Upon the dissolution or winding up of the

corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and
liabilities of this corporation shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation or corporation

| which is organized and operated exclusively for public benefit purposes and which has estabhshed
its tax exempt status under Section 501(c)(3), Internal Revenue Code. :

Jonathan Kusel, Incorporator

Sierra Instltute for Community a %&v@m rk Feather River, Mill Creek, Deer Creek Watersheds
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

AUG 2 3 2002 Employer Identification Number:

Date: | 91-1818166
{ ’ DLN:
) 17053096779052
FOREST. COMMUNITY RESEARCH Contact Person:
PO BOX 11 MICHAEL A LUDWIG ID# 31470
TAYLORSVILLE, CA 95983 Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Our Letter Dated:
January 1998
Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

Thissmodifies our letter of the above date in which we stated that you
would be treated as an organization that is not a prlvate foundation until the
explratlon of your advance ruling perlod

Your exempt status under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as. an
organization described in section 501 (c) (3) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitted, we have determined that you are not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are an
organization of the' type described in section 509 (a) (1) and 170 (b) (1) (A) (vi).

.Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes. notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your section 509(a) (1) status, a grantor or contribufer may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part responsible for: ‘or was aware of,
the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she ]
acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you:
would no longer be classified as a section 509(a) (1) organization.

You are required to make your annual information return, Form 990 oxr
Form 990-EZ, available for public inspection for three years after the later
of the due date of the return or the date the return is filed. You are also
required to make available for public inspection your exemption.application,
any supporting documents,, and your exemption letter. Copies of these R |
documents are also requlred tq be provided to any individual upon weitten or in
person request without charge ‘other than reasonable fees for copying and
postage. You may fulfill this requirement by placing these documents on the
Internet. Penalties may be imposed for failure to comply with these
requirements. Additicnal information is available in Publication 557,
Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, or you may call our toll free

number shown above. . '

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letter.

- _ . Letter 1050 (DO/€G)
N

€

~.
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FOREST COMMUNITY RESEARCH

‘Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it in your permanent records.

(If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and

.telephone number are shown .above.

Sincerely yours,

ois G. Lerner
Director, Exempt Organizations

Ie o

’,

Letter 1050 (DO/CE)

[

-~
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA-DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

PAYEE DATA RECORD

(Required when receiving payment from the State of California in lieu of IRS W-9 or W-7)
STD 204 (Rev. 5/2018)

INSTRUCTIONS: Type or print the information. Complete all information on this form. Sign, date, and return to the state

agency (department/office) address shown in Box 6. Prompt return of this fully completed form will prevent de
processing payments.

lays when

Information provided in this form will be used by California state agencies to prepare Information Returns (Form1099). See next

page for more information and Privacy Statement.

NOTE: Governmental entities, i.e. federal, state, and local (including school districts), are not required to submit this form.

BUSINESS NAME (As shown on your income tax return)
Sierra Institute for Community & Environment

SOLE PROPRIETOR, SINGLE MEMBER LLC, INDIVIDUAL (Name as shown on SSN or ITIN) Last, First, M | E-MAIL ADDRESS

JKusel@sierrainstitute.us

PAYEE
ENTITY
TYPE

CHECK
ONE BOX
ONLY

D PARTNERSHIP CORPORATION:

l:‘ ESTATE OR TRUST O MEDICAL (e.g., dentistry, psychotherapy, chiropractic, etc.)
(7)) LEGAL (e.g, attorney services)
(@) EXEMPT (nonprofit)
() ALL OTHERS

ENTERSSNORITIN:| | | + | -|- | | I |

] SOLE PROPRIETOR, INDIVIDUAL, OR Social Security Number (SSN) or Individual Taxpayer Identification
SINGLE MEMBER LLC (Disregarded Entity) Number (ITIN) are required by authority of California Revenue and
Tax Code sections 18646 and 18661) 5

MAILING ADDRESS BUSINESS ADDRESS

P.0O.Box 11 4438 Main Street

CITY STATE |ZIP CODE CITY STATE |2IP CODE

Taylorsville CA 95983 Taylorsville = CA 95983
ENTER FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATIONNUMBER(FEIN):| 9 | 1+ 1| 8| 1| 8| 1| 6 | 6 || NOTE:

Payment will not
be processed
without an
accompanying
taxpayer
identification
number.

4

PAYEE

RESIDENCY]|

STATUS

CALIFORNIA RESIDENT - Qualified to do business in California or maintains a permanent place of business in California.
|:| CALIFORNIA NON RESIDENT (see next page for more information) - Payments to nonresidents for services may be subject
to state income tax withholding.
() No services performed in California.
O Copy of Franchise Tax Board waiver of state withholding attached.

5

| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided on this document is true and correct.

Should my residency status change, | will promptly notify the state agency below.

AUTHORIZED PAYEE REPRESENTATIVE'S NAME (Type or Print) TITLE TELEPHONE (include area code)
Jonathan Kusel Executive Director (530) 284-1022
SIGNATU T ) DATE E-MAIL ADDRESS
o / ', . < % 7
( (A T‘m A B0, 2019 JKusel@sierrainstitute.us
Please return completed form to:
6 DEPARTMENT/OFFICE UNIT/SECTION
Department of Conservation Division of Land Resource Protection, Watershed Coordinator Program
MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE (include area code) |FAX
801 K Street (916) 324-0850
CITY STATE |ZIP CODE E-MAIL ADDRESS
Sacramento CA 95814 wcp@conservation.ca.gov
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